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Corporate Information

REGISTERED OFFICE
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS
Units 3-6, 11th Floor

Kodak House 2

39 Healthy Street East

North Point

Hong Kong

WEBSITE
http://www.moiselle.com.hk

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE
Bank of Bermuda (Cayman) Limited

P.O. Box 513 GT

Strathvale House

North Church Street, George Town

Grand Cayman, Cayman Islands

British West Indies

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Hong Kong Registrars Limited

Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

KEY DATES
Closure of Register of Members:
27 August 2008 to 29 August 2008

Annual General Meeting:
29 August 2008

Final Dividend Payment:

(subject to shareholders” approval at Annual General Meeting)
5 September 2008
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Dear Fellow Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of Directors (the “Board”) of Moiselle
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to
present the results of the Company and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2008.

RESULTS

The Group recorded a turnover of approximately HK$415
million and profit attributable to the shareholders of
approximately HK$52 million for the year ended 31 March
2008. Gross margin decreased to 74.9 percent, compared to
79.1 percent in last year and operating margin significantly
decreased to 14.0 percent, compared to 24.3 percent in last

year.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group explored the fashion accessories market by
establishing accessories brands COCCINELLE and SEQUOIA in
Hong Kong during the year. Other than accessories market, the
Group started to develop menswear market during the year when
the REISS shops were opened in Hong Kong. By engaging in
more areas of retail fashion business, the Group expanded its
customer base and constructed the foundation of a multiple

retailer in the fashion market.

During the fiscal year of 2008, other than the existing one in
Shenzhen, the Group established regional office in Beijing to
manage and monitor the performance of northern China sales
network. By relocation of certain stores after continuously
extending its sales network in the mainland China market for
several years, the Group aimed to access the most effective and
efficient channels to serve its target customers. The sales network
in Taiwan and Macau were extended and brand image

strengthened in respective markets during the year.
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Chairman’s Statement

The house brands under the Group, MOISELLE, mademoiselle
and imaroon, had managed to present distinctive brand images
to serve different customers with different demand in fashionable
apparel and accessories products. The images of the three brands
were consistently presented to customers in various markets so
as to cultivate the highest brand potential and to capture the

long term relations with the loyal customers.

OUTLOOK

The fashion retail market in Hong Kong and mainland China has
become increasingly competitive and the Group will continue
the design focused strategies to increase its competitive edge
and improve the market potential of its products. Increased
resources have been allocated to research and development of
products for coming seasons. Refreshed design and styling for
MOISELLE brand products have been launched and well received
by the market. The Group keeps its brands with rejuvenated life
cycles in order to secure the vitality and marketability of the

related products.

Other than the shops opened in last year, the Group has opened
one more REISS shop in the Festival Walk shopping mall after
the year end. In the coming year, the Group will continue to
build up the image of the European brands operated and
cooperate with respective principals to increase marketing

activities and expand the customer base.

The Group will also take the growth in economy in mainland
China as future focus in business development. Not only the
current favorable economic atmosphere caused by the Beijing
Olympic effects, the long term development of the China
economy is considered contributory to positive returns for the
Group's business. The Group is going to expand its sales network
in both Beijing and Shanghai to achieve higher market

penetration in these cities.
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By expanding sales network and operating multiple brands, the
Group will keep on providing the valuable fashion products with
unique and irresistible characteristics to its faithful customers.
The Board will review and analyze the performance of each
individual brand within the Group in order to increase the return
to our shareholders. Moreover, the Board will also closely
monitor the cost management in the processes of the Group’s

development in both the short to medium terms.

Appreciation

On behalf of the Board, | take this opportunity to thank all our
shareholders and our fellow business partners, our management
and staff for their hard work and dedication to the Group, and
most importantly our prestigious customers for their support

during the year.

Chan Yum Kit

Chairman

Hong Kong, 22 July 2008
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Management Discussion and Analysis

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

During the year under review, the Group opened the first retail
outlet of COCCINELLE, an ltalian fashion accessories brand, in
IFC Mall in Central, Hong Kong. In addition, the first two retail
outlets of REISS, a UK high street fashion brand, had been
opened in the shopping malls of Time Square and Gateway. For
the French accessories brand SEQUOIA, the point of sales was
established in the imaroon shop at the shopping mall of
Langham Place during the year. By establishing retail outlets in
the shopping districts with high pedestrian flows, with the
increased variety of product combination, the Group
successfully expanded the customer base and introduced the
new brand mix of the Group to the market. The Group had
organized marketing activities to increase the brand awareness

in respect of these European brands.

During the year under review, the Group adjusted its sales
network in the mainland China under the three house brands,
MOISELLE, mademoiselle and imaroon, of the Group. There were
64 MOISELLE stores (2007: 67) operating in the mainland China
as at 31 March 2008. 42 (2007: 49) out of the 64 (2007: 67)
stores were operated as consignment stores and 5 (2007: Nil)
were retail shops. The remaining ones were operated by
franchisees. The sales network of the brands mademoiselle and
imaroon was increased in the mainland China region during the
year. There were 11 (2007: 6) mademoiselle stores and 13 (2007:
15) imaroon stores operating as at 31 March 2008. Newly
opened stores were located in cities of Jinhua, Nanjing,
Guangzhou, Kunming, Shanxi, Shenyang, Shijiazhuang, Wuhan,
Changshou, etc. The adjustment in sales network aimed at
capturing the most suitable locations in the competitive market
and diverse cities in China. The multi-brand strategies had kept
bringing competitive edge and synergy effects on the brand
building and increase potential in the China fashion retail

market.
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The established network in the market in the mainland China
region continued to provide growth momentum to the Group
and to increase the brand exposure in major and second- to
third-tiers cities. With integrated marketing strategies, activities
in both Hong Kong and China regions had delivered and
strengthened new brand image and new design concepts for
products of MOISELLE during the year.

In Hong Kong, the Group operated 18 MOISELLE, 4
mademoiselle and 7 imaroon (2007: 17 MOISELLE, 4
mademoiselle and 7 imaroon) retail outlets as at 31 March 2008.
The three brands were separately managed with each having its
own distinctive target customers. The design teams for each
brands worked out their own line plans and image stories from
different creative sources of fashion trends. The Group’s retail
operations, however, were managed to arrive at objectives in the

most effective and efficient manner.

Two (2007: one) stores of MOISELLE was maintained during the
year in Macau. The shop opened at the Grand Canal Shoppes,
Venetian during the year was the Group’s flagship store in
Macau. With the increased tourists traveling to and expatriates
staying in Macau, the demand of prestigious fashion products is
expected to grow and the Group will continue to introduce more
attractive and valuable fashion apparel and accessories products

into the market.

At 31 March 2008, the Group operated in Taiwan market 9
MOISELLE stores (2007: 6) in Taipei, Taoyuan, Kaohsiung and
Hsinchu. With the rebuilt sales network in Taiwan, the Group
had started to gradually change certain stores to self-managed

shops during the year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Overview

The Group’s turnover increased by approximately 18% to
approximately HK$415,464,000 (2007: HK$352,217,000) during
the year ended 31 March 2008 as compared with 2007. As the
development of sales network in the PRC had generated
improved performance, the revenue of the region outside Hong
Kong increased by 27% to approximately HK$182,466,000
(2007: HK$144,139,000) during the period under review. The
exploration of the markets outside Hong Kong had successfully
increased the segment turnover ratio from approximately 41% of
2007 to approximately 44% for the year ended 31 March 2008.

The revenue earned from Hong Kong segment increased by
approximately 12% to HK$232,998,000 (2007:
HK$208,078,000) which was mainly attributable to the stronger
performance of MOISELLE brand after refreshment of the brand
image and the introduction of new brands from Europe into
Hong Kong market during the financial year under review.

During the year under review, the Group’s gross profit margin
was approximately 74.9%, as compared to approximately 79.1%
of the previous year. The decrease in gross profit margin was
attributed by the moderate increase in labour costs and
manufacturing overhead combined with slight increase in raw
material costs. Operating expenses for the year ended 31 March
2008 totaled approximately HK$256,818,000, compared to
approximately HK$198,227,000 for 2007, increased by
approximately 30%. The increase in operating expenses was due
to the increase in new shops for European brands in Hong Kong
market and adjustment of sales network in the mainland China.
Major components of such increase came from rent, staff cost,
transportation and other selling and distribution costs. As a
result, the overall operational efficiency was decreased and the
operating margin became 14.0% (2007: 24.3%).

The profit for the year ended 31 March 2008 was approximately
HK$52,299,000 (2007: HK$78,254,000), decreased by
approximately HK$25,955,000, 33%. The decrease was resulted
from the increase in cost of sales and operating expenses in a
significantly greater rate as compared to that of the increase in
turnover.
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Liquidity and financial resources

During the year, the Group financed its operations with internal
generated cash flows. The Group adopts a prudent financial
policy such that it can meet the financial obligations when they
fall due and maintain a sufficient operating fund for the
development of the Group’s business. At the end of the year, the
Group’s aggregate fixed deposits and cash balances amounted to
approximately HK$82 million (2007: HK$90 million). As at 31
March 2008, the Group maintained aggregate composite
banking facilities of approximately HK$87 million (2007: HK$90
million) with various banks, of which approximately HK$5
million (2007: HK$2 million) were utilised.

The Group continues to enjoy healthy financial position. As at
31 March 2008, the current ratio (current assets divided by
current liabilities) was approximately 3.4 times (2007: 4.3 times)
and the gearing ratio (aggregate of bank borrowings and finance
lease payables divided by shareholders’ equity) was 0.4%
(2007: Nil).

Charge on assets

As at 31 March 2008, a property of the Group with a carrying
amount of HK$4 million (2007: HK$2 million) is pledged to
secure certain banking facilities granted to the Group.

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 March 2008, the Company had contingent liabilities in
relation to guarantees given to banks against facilities extended
to certain wholly owned subsidiaries amounting to
approximately HK$5 million (2007: HK$2 million).

During the year ended 31 March 2008, the Company has also
issued a single guarantee to a supplier against obligations or
sums payable for goods and services supplied to a wholly owned
subsidiary. At 31 March 2008, such obligations amounted to
HK$1 milllion (2007: $Nil).

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 March 2008, the Group employed 1,355 (2007: 1,146)
employees mainly in Hong Kong and the PRC. Salaries of
employees are maintained at competitive levels while bonuses
are granted on a discretionary basis. Other employee benefits
include mandatory provident fund, statutory and medical
insurance cover, training programmes and a share option scheme
and a share award scheme.
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Executive Directors

Mr. CHAN Yum Kit, aged 49, is the Chairman of the Company.
Mr. Chan is one of the co-founders of the Group and has overall
responsibility for the Group’s overall strategic planning,
formulation of corporate policies and marketing. He has over 31
years of experience in business administration in various
industries including garment manufacturing and trading. Mr.
Chan was awarded the Young Industrialist Awards of Hongkong
by the Federation of Hong Kong Industries in November 2001
and was awarded with the DHL/SCMP Hong Kong Business
Award in the Owner-Operator Award category in December
2001. He was awarded 2006 World Outstanding Chinese Award
by the World Chinese Business Investment Foundation. Mr. Chan
holds an honorary doctorate degree in management from
Armstrong University in the United States. He was also awarded
2004 Associateship by The Professional Validation Council of
Hong Kong Industries in January 2004. He is a fellow member of
Asian Knowledge Management Association. He is the husband of
Ms. Tsui How Kiu, Shirley and is the father of Mr. Chan Sze
Chun. Mr. Chan is the brother-in-law of Mr. Chui Hing Yee.

Ms. TSUI How Kiu, Shirley, aged 49, is an executive director.
She is one of the co-founders of the Group. Ms. Tsui is the brand
creative director of the Group and is responsible for the Group’s
design and development functions, as well as merchandising
management and retail operations management. She has over 31
years of experience in business administration in various
industries including garment manufacturing and trading. Ms. Tsui
is the wife of Mr. Chan, Chairman of the Company, and is the
mother of Mr. Chan Sze Chun. Ms. Tsui is the sister of Mr. Chui
Hing Yee.

Mr. CHUI Hing Yee, aged 57, is an executive director. He is one
of the co-founders of the Group and is responsible for the
manufacturing operations of the Group in the PRC. Mr. Chui has
over 31 years of experience in the garment manufacturing
industry. Mr. Chui is the brother of Ms. Tsui How Kiu, Shirley
and is the brother-in-law of Mr. Chan, Chairman of the

Company.

ANNUAL REPORT 2008 448k

MOISELLE

11



MOISELLE

12

P L ARE A B

Directors and Senior Management Profiles

REBZEE 308 ARAZHTES KR =
TEEHFE+_AMALEER EEEELEEH
BTG ER - RE & L ERFEF R MMonash
UniversityB 282 T 2 c RIIA QR EFEREE
RiEELzE2F -

BIUFHTES
REELZL 48 R-ZBEZE-_F-—AEZEAH
BYFPTES RLTASROEMITZEM
REBA NEARBA_TFIELR BERRW
EJTFE.:%E&%%/EEJJE@H& Bl T R 3 M 2 |
BRENSEREEZELZE({  REBBSolicitors'
Final Examination » BUSEREK - RYIERER
EEFHEEDAT —FE&B -RZLtWR=-ZZTH
FNAEZAEALNRBEZEGZEZE N
ERF+_PEZERBABEKEREERE
RR-_ZZ+F-AEZEALYEAEZEESES -

KEHEE 7B RZZBEZEZF+AEZEESR
BYPITEZT SAELRAEEHEEEEER
REATHAES BAFERERERCRBZEBRS
SHEERSREBEIFER T LEER -KEE
#University of EssexEUSEZ2 (BEFIR)ELE
i & #University of Westminster, LondonEl {5 12 2
EL2 -

MOISELLE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED H&FHEBREEFRD =

Mr. CHAN Sze Chun, aged 30, is an executive director. He
joined the Group in December 2000. He is responsible for
overseeing the Group’s overseas market operations. Mr. Chan
Sze Chun holds a bachelor’s degree in commerce from Monash
University of Australia. He is the son of Mr. Chan, Chairman of

the Company, and Ms. Tsui How Kiu, Shirley.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. YU Yuk Ying, Vivian, aged 48, is an independent non-
executive director appointed in January 2002. Ms. Yu is a
solicitor and a partner with Yung, Yu, Yuen & Co., a firm of
solicitors, and has been practising in Hong Kong for over 20
years with a focus in the conveyancing and commercial practice.
She obtained a bachelor’s degree in science from University of
Wisconsin-Madison as her first degree and then passed the
Solicitors’ Final Examination and qualified as a solicitor. Ms. Yu
has over 11 years’ experience in property investment and
management. Ms. Yu was appointed as a committee member of
the Committee on the Promotion of Civic Education in April
2005, as an adjudicator of Immigration Tribunal in December
2006 and as a member of the Antiquities Advisory Board in
January 2007.

Mr. CHU Chun Kit, Sidney, aged 47, is an independent non-
executive director appointed in October 2003. Mr. Chu is
currently the chief executive officer of Merkur Holdings Ltd. He
has 17 years’ experience in international marketing and senior
management role in both the semiconductor and solid-state
lighting industries. Mr. Chu graduated from University of Essex
with a bachelor’s degree in science (electronic engineering) and
received a master’s degree in science from University of

Westminster, London.
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Ms. WONG Shuk Ying, Helen, aged 54, is an independent non-
executive director appointed in September 2004. Ms. Wong is
currently the chief of finance operations and systems
development of Hospital Authority. She has more than 31 years’
experience in management consulting and systems
implementation in both the public and private sectors. Ms. Wong
is a member of the Certified Management Accountants Society of
British Columbia in Canada and holds a bachelor’s degree in

commerce from Queen’s University in Canada.

Senior Management

Mr. WONG Hoi Yuen, lke, aged 45, is the general manager of
the design and merchandising operations of the Group. He has
over 21 years of experience in fashion design and production

management. He joined the Group in January 1987.

Ms. PANG Lin, Elaine, aged 38, is the chief operating officer of
the Group, the company secretary and the qualified accountant
of the Company. Prior to joining the Group in June 2001, Ms.
Pang served as a finance manager and company secretary of a
company listed on the main board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited. She has over 17 years of experience in the
audit, accounting and finance, administration and corporate
secretarial fields. She holds a bachelor of arts degree in
accountancy and a master’s degree in business administration
(fashion business) from Hong Kong Polytechnic University and a
bachelor’s degree in Chinese law from Peking University. She is
a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
of the United Kingdom, the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and the Institute of Chartered Secretaries &

Administrators of the United Kingdom.
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The company is committed to meeting statutory and regulatory
requirements and adherence to the principles of corporate
governance emphasizing transparency, independence,

accountability, responsibility and fairness.

CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The company has complied with the code provisions listed in
the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “CG Code”) as
set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing
Rules”) throughout the year ended 31 March 2008. The only
exception is that Mr. Chan Yum Kit is the chairman of the board
of directors (the “Board”) and also assumes the role of the chief
executive officer. The Board considers that the current
management structure ensures consistent leadership and optimal

efficiency for the operation of the company.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the company’s
code of conduct for dealings in securities of the company by the
directors. Based on specific enquiry of the company’s directors,
the directors have complied with the required standard set out in
the Model Code throughout the year ended 31 March 2008.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board comprises seven directors, four of which are
executive directors, namely Mr. Chan Yum Kit (Chairman), Ms.
Tsui How Kiu, Shirley, Mr. Chui Hing Yee and Mr. Chan Sze
Chun, and three are independent non-executive directors,
namely Ms. Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian, Mr. Chu Chun Kit, Sidney and
Ms. Wong Shuk Ying, Helen.

During the year ended 31 March 2008, four board meetings

were held. The attendance of each director is set out as follows:

HFE A2 8%
Director Attendance record
Mr. Chan Yum Kit 4/4
Ms. Tsui How Kiu, Shirley 4/4
Mr. Chui Hing Yee 3/4
Mr. Chan Sze Chun 4/4
Ms. Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian 4/4
Mr. Chu Chun Kit, Sidney 4/4
Ms. Wong Shuk Ying, Helen 4/4

The board of directors is responsible for the formulation of
business strategies for the group and the operational decision

making is delegated to the management team.

The relationship among members of the board is separately

disclosed in the directors and senior management profiles.

TERM OF NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
The independent non-executive directors were appointed for a
term of two years and are subject to retirement by rotation in

accordance with the articles of association of the company.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The company has received from each of the independent non-
executive directors a confirmation of independence for the year
ended 31 March 2008 pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules
and considers all the independent non-executive directors to be

independent.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The company has a remuneration committee which was
established in compliance with the CG Code. The members of
the remuneration committee comprise two independent non-
executive directors of the company, Ms. Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian
(Chairperson) and Mr. Chu Chun Kit, Sidney, and one executive
director, Mr. Chan Sze Chun.

During the year ended 31 March 2008, two remuneration
committee meetings were held. The attendance of each

committee member is set out as follows:

o FE R0 8%
Director Attendance record
Ms. Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian 2/2
Mr. Chu Chun Kit, Sidney 2/2
Mr. Chan Sze Chun 2/2

The main role and function of the remuneration committee
consist of determining the remuneration and the terms of
employment of the directors. During the year, the remuneration
committee has assessed the performance of the executive
directors, determined the discretionary bonuses of the executive
directors and approved the terms of executive directors’ service

agreements and non-executive directors’ appointments.

The emoluments of the executive directors are determined with
reference to the duties, responsibilities and experience of the
directors and prevailing market conditions. Besides the basic
salaries and benefits-in-kind as stipulated in the service
agreements, prior approval of the remuneration committee is
also required for performance related benefits of the executive

directors.
The emoluments of the non-executive directors are determined

based on the estimated time spent by them on the company’s

matters.
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION
During the year, the remuneration paid to the independent

auditors, KPMG, are analysed as follows:

BT
HK$
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The company has an audit committee which was established in
compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules for the purposes
of reviewing and providing supervision over the group’s financial
reporting process and internal controls. The audit committee
comprises three independent non-executive directors of the
company, Ms. Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian (Chairperson), Mr. Chu Chun
Kit, Sidney and Ms. Wong Shuk Ying, Helen, and reports to the
Board.

During the year ended 31 March 2008, three audit committee
meetings were held. The attendance of each committee member

is set out as follows:

i FERC 8%
Director Attendance record
Ms. Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian 3/3
Mr. Chu Chun Kit, Sidney 3/3
Ms. Wong Shuk Ying, Helen 3/3

During the year, the audit committee has reviewed with the
management the accounting principles and practices adopted by
the group, the interim and annual financial statements of the
group, met and discussed with the independent auditors, and
raised queries and obtained explanations from the management
on issues related to financial and operational control procedures

of the group.
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INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges their responsibilities on the
maintenance of an internal control system which is essential for
effective and efficient operations of the group and is
fundamental in the thorough and regular evaluation of the nature
and extent of the risks to which the group is exposed. Internal
control is defined as a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the achievement of objectives in relation to

the following:

. Effectiveness and efficiency of operations;
. Reliability of financial reporting; and
o Compliance with applicable laws and regulations.

For the year ended 31 March 2008, the Board, with the
assistance of the management, had conducted an annual review
on the effectiveness of the internal control system of the group,
focusing on three major business cycles of the group, and had
been satisfied with its effectiveness on monitoring and evaluating
the risks. Based on the results, the directors were dedicated to
implement various initiatives to further enhance the existing
internal control system alongside with the ongoing business

development of the group.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR PREPARING ACCOUNTS
The company’s directors acknowledge that they are responsible
for the preparation of financial statements which give a true and

fair view.

STATEMENT BY THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
The statement of the independent auditors of the group regarding
their responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the

independent auditor’s report on pages 31 and 32.
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Report of the Directors

The directors have pleasure in submitting their annual report
together with the audited financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2008.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the group are the design, manufacture,
retail and wholesale of fashion apparel and accessories. The
principal activities and other particulars of the subsidiaries are

set out in note 14 to the financial statements.

The analysis of geographical locations of the operations of the
company and its subsidiaries during the financial year is set out

in note 12 to the financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 March 2008, the percentages of the
five largest customers combined and the five largest suppliers
combined were less than 30% of the group’s total turnover and

purchases, respectively.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The profit of the group for the year ended 31 March 2008 and
the state of the company’s and the group’s affairs as at that date

are set out in the financial statements on pages 33 to 126.
A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the

group for each of the last five financial years is set out in pages

127 and 128 of the annual report.
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TRANSFER TO RESERVES

Profit attributable to shareholders, before dividends, of
HK$52,299,000 (2007: HK$78,254,000) has been transferred to
reserves. Other movements in reserves are set out in note 26 to

the financial statements.

An interim dividend of Hong Kong 4 cents per share (2007:
Hong Kong 5 cents per share) was paid on 16 January 2008. The
directors now recommend the payment of a final dividend of
Hong Kong 7 cents per share (2007: Hong Kong 12 cents per
share) in respect of the year ended 31 March 2008 to all
shareholders whose names appear on the register of members on
29 August 2008.

FIXED ASSETS
Details of the movements in fixed assets of the group during the
year ended 31 March 2008 are set out in note 13 to the financial

statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the movements in share capital of the company during

the year are set out in note 25 to the financial statements.
BANK BORROWINGS

Particulars of bank borrowings of the group as at 31 March 2008

are set out in note 21 to the financial statements.
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Report of the Directors

RETIREMENT SCHEME

The group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under the
jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF
scheme is a defined contribution retirement scheme
administered by independent trustees. Under the MPF scheme,
the employer and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the scheme at 5% of the employees’ relevant
income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of
HK$20,000.

As stipulated by the regulations of the People’s Republic of
China (“PRC"), the group participates in defined contribution
retirement plans organised by the relevant authorities for its PRC
employees. The group is required to make contributions to the
retirement plans which are calculated based on certain
prescribed rates on the salaries, bonuses and certain allowances
of its PRC employees. The group has no other material obligation
for the payment of pension benefits associated with such plans

beyond the annual contributions described above.

Employees of the subsidiary carrying on business in Taiwan have
chosen to participate in a defined contribution scheme governed
by the Labour Pension Act. The subsidiary contributes at 6% of
the total salaries of participating employees that choose to
participate in the defined contribution scheme, deposited into
individual pension accounts at the Bureau of Labour Insurance.
Contributions to the defined contribution scheme are charged to

profit or loss when incurred.

ANNUAL REPORT 2008 448k

MOISELLE

21



MOISELLE

22

3

Report of the Directors

E=
BE_ZTZ)/\F=A=1-HLFEREEFRR
BNz BEZEENT

BiTES
BRERAR L
RILBERL
REELE
REREE

BYFHITES
REELZL
REEBERE
BERRZ L

BROBELT BREBELTERRIZAELERRER
RAZABERAAUESTHRRERERRBFRE
LER REFEERLFH/EBM -

BEERBEN
BYFBTESZ2ANREMF  LAREALQ
ACHABERMARESR -

RAEERRBEAS LEEEE2ESHERT
NARBIEEAMBARNARAR-—FARLLEM
BAXNREES CAEBERMN 2 RIBRBE
o

MOISELLE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED H&FHEBREEFRD =

DIRECTORS
The directors during the year ended 31 March 2008 and up to

the date of this report were:

Executive directors

Mr. Chan Yum Kit

Ms. Tsui How Kiu, Shirley
Mr. Chui Hing Yee

Mr. Chan Sze Chun

Independent non-executive directors
Ms. Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian

Mr. Chu Chun Kit, Sidney

Ms. Wong Shuk Ying, Helen

Ms. Tsui How Kiu, Shirley, Mr. Chui Hing Yee and Mr. Chan Sze
Chun will retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting in
accordance with article 87 of the company’s articles of

association and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS
The independent non-executive directors were appointed for a
term of two years and are subject to retirement by rotation in

accordance with the articles of association of the company.

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has an unexpired service contract which is not
determinable by the company or any of its subsidiaries within
one year without payment of compensation, other than normal

statutory obligations.
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Report of the Directors

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS IN
SECURITIES

As at 31 March 2008, the interests and short positions of the
directors and the chief executive of the company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)) as recorded in the
register kept by the company under section 352 of the SFO, or
as otherwise notified to the company and The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”) contained in the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”)

were as follows:

Yt

Name of director

RGOz BHmES

Beneficial interest in shares

EEMtE

Nature of interest

Mr. Chan Yum Kit

®RILBELL
Ms. Tsui How Kiu, Shirley

ERRZ T
Ms. Wong Shuk Ying, Helen
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190,872,000

190,872,000

30,000

DR KWK (1)K (2)

Corporate/Family (Notes (1) and (2))

DNERIR (BaE1)R(2)

Corporate/Family (Notes (1) and (2))

BA

Personal
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS IN
SECURITIES (continued)

Notes:

(1) 190,000,000 of these shares are held by Super Result Consultants
Limited (“Super Result”). The share capital of Super Result is
beneficially owned by Mr. Chan Yum Kit (“Mr. Chan”), Ms. Tsui
How Kiu, Shirley (“Ms. Tsui”) and Mr. Chui Hing Yee as to 46.7%,
46.7% and 6.6% respectively. Each of Mr. Chan and Ms. Tsui will
therefore be deemed to be interested in the 190,000,000 shares

held by Super Result as corporate interest.

872,000 of these shares are held by New First Investments Limited
(“New First”). The share capital of New First is beneficially owned
by Mr. Chan and Ms. Tsui as to 50% and 50% respectively. Each of
Mr. Chan and Ms. Tsui will therefore be deemed to be interested in

the 872,000 shares held by New First as corporate interest.

(2)  Since Mr. Chan and Ms. Tsui are married to the other, Mr. Chan
will be deemed to be interested in the shares which Ms. Tsui will

be deemed to be interested in as family interest and vice versa.

In addition to the above, one director has non-beneficial
personal equity interests in certain subsidiaries held for the
benefit of the group. Certain directors also have beneficial
interests in non-voting deferred shares practically carrying no
rights to dividends or to receive notice of or to attend or vote at
any general meeting or to participate in any distribution or

winding up in a subsidiary.

The directors of the company have been granted options under
the company’s share option scheme, details of which are set out

in the section “Share option scheme” below.

Apart from the foregoing, as at 31 March 2008, none of the
directors or the chief executive of the company or their
respective associates had any interests or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the company or any
of its associated corporations, within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO, as recorded in the register kept by the company under
section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the company

and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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Report of the Directors

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The company has a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) which
was adopted on 25 January 2002 to enable the company to grant
options to selected participants as incentives and rewards for
their contribution to the group. The Scheme shall be valid and

effective for a period of ten years from the date of its adoption.

Under the Scheme, the directors of the company are authorised,
at their discretion, to offer full-time employees, executives or
officers, including the directors of the company or any of its
subsidiaries or any suppliers, consultants, agents and advisers
who will or have contributed to the group, options to subscribe
for such number of new shares of the company as the board of
directors of the company may determine. Upon acceptance of
the option, the grantee shall pay HK$1.00 to the company by

way of consideration for the grant.

The exercise price of options is the highest of the nominal value
of the shares, the closing price of the shares on the Stock
Exchange on the date of grant and the average closing price of
the shares on the Stock Exchange for the five trading days

immediately preceding the date of grant.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
Scheme at any time during a period commencing on such date
on or after the date on which the option is granted as the
directors may determine in granting the option and expiring at
the close of business on such date as the directors may
determine in granting the option but in any event such period
shall not exceed ten years commencing on the date on which

the option is granted.

ANNUAL REPORT 2008 448k

MOISELLE

25



MOISELLE

26

3

Report of the Directors
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted under the Scheme may not exceed 28,000,000
shares, representing 9.93% of the issued share capital of the
company as at the date of this report. The number of shares
available for issue under the Scheme can be increased up to
30% of the shares of the company in issue from time to time,

subject to the approval of the company’s shareholders.

The number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted to any individual in any twelve-month period up to and
including the date of grant may not exceed 1% of the shares of
the company in issue as at the date of grant, without prior

approval from the company’s shareholders.

Options granted to a substantial shareholder or an independent
non-executive director in any twelve-month period up to and
including the date of grant may not exceed both 0.1% of the
company’s share capital and a value of HK$5 million as at the
date of grant, without prior approval from the company’s

shareholders.

Pursuant to the Scheme, the company had granted options to
certain directors and employees of the company and other
participant to subscribe for shares of the company. A summary of
the movements of the outstanding share options during the year
ended 31 March 2008 is set out below.
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BREE (&) SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)
FREZR RERRE
Number of share options EY RS
Eh Z8EHE
RZ2%LE BAR  R-BENE Market value
mA-H ER £ /8% =ZR=t-A gk per share
i3 & BT Lapsed/ g 1% immediately
Balance Granted Exercised cancelled Balance  Exercise RHEH EgE before the
RERAL asat  dwingthe  duringthe  during the asat price Date Exercisable  date of grant
Eligible person 1 April 2007 year year year 31 March 2008 per share of grant period of options
Er  (B/B/%) (B/B/%) Br
HKS  (DD/MMAYYYY) (DD/MMAYYYY) HKS
%
Director
REE
Mr. Chan 2,100,000 - - - 2,100,000 115 2/412002  23/4/2002 to 1/412012 1.14
#at
Ms. Tsui 2,100,000 - - - 2,100,000 1.15 2/412002  23/4/2002 to 1/412012 1.14
HER
Chui Hing Yee 500,000 - - - 500,000 115 2/4/2002  23/4/2002 to 1/412012 1.14
Raf#
Chan Sze Chun 900,000 - - - 900,000 1.15 2/4/2002  23/4/2002 to 1/412012 1.14
Yu Yuk Ying, 100,000 - - - 100,000 1.15 2/4/2002  23/4/2002 to 1/412012 1.14
Vivian
RELWESLT
Continuous contract 20,000 - - - 20,000 1.15 2/412002  2/4/2003 to 1/4/2012 1.14

employees in aggregate

EREREE;
Suppliers of 200,000 - - - 200,000 1.15 2/4/2002  23/4/2002 to 1/4/2012 1.14

services in

aggregate

5,920,000 - - - 5,920,000

BRAETMEIN  XQ2F HERAT HEBLAIH Apart from the foregoing, at no time during the year ended 31
BZEMEBATIRNEBZE-_SEESNE=A=+—81 March 2008 was the company, any of its holding company,
EEMEEB T — S T TR BUEE subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to
AT CESRIBTHASRHE > BS RS enable the directors or the chief executive of the company or

any of their spouses or children under eighteen years of age to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the company or any other body corporate.

TNABZFRAERBEARARTREMEMEAR
BoRONESMERRNE -
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RATRAEAZERHE S

RZZZNF=ZA=1T—-H BREAQARER
ZRMERGIEDBMFzZREFE 2B TMATE
HoORARAESREIEZETHRAEZN  UTR
RRAABDROBEERDFEEEARBEESR
HERPIEXVIBMEAQ A 2 DR AR

SUBSTANTIAL INTERESTS IN THE SHARE CAPITAL OF THE
COMPANY

As at 31 March 2008, the interests or short positions of the
following shareholders, other than the directors and the chief
executive of the company, in the shares or underlying shares of
the company which have been disclosed to the company
pursuant to Part XV of the SFO have been recorded in the
register kept by the company under section 336 of the SFO:

ERAREEIS BT
BARZBNBE DT
HERMDEE Approximate percentage of
BREEZE Aggregate long aggregate interests to
Name of shareholder position in shares total issued share capital
Super Result 190,000,000 67.37% (B1:E1)
(Note 1)
Allianz SE 17,155,000 6.08% (ft:t2)
(Note 2)
Dresdner Bank Aktiengesellschaft 17,155,000 6.08% (fit:t2)
(Note 2)
Veer Palthe Voute NV 17,155,000 6.08% (f1:£3)
(Note 3)
Commonwealth Bank of Australia 18,072,000 6.41% (fit5t4)
(Note 4)
First State Investments (Hong Kong) Ltd 18,072,000 6.41% (f1E5)
(Note 5)
Queensland Investment Corporation 20,000,000 7.09% (ftate)
(Note 6)
Yeoman Capital Management Pte Ltd 20,000,000 7.09% (Btat7)
(Note 7)
Yeo Seng Chong%t 4 ([ Yeost 4 ) 20,800,000 7.38% (B1i#8)
Mr. Yeo Seng Chong (“Mr. Yeo”) (Note 8)
Lim Mee HwaZz £ ([Lim#zz % ]) 20,800,000 7.38% (B1:£8)
Ms. Lim Mee Hwa (“Ms. Lim”) (Note 8)
The Bank of New York Mellon Corporation 17,000,000 6.03% (f1:£9)
(Note 9)
The Bank of New York 17,000,000 6.03% (ftst10)
(Note 10)
MOISELLE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED i@ EEERAT ANNUAL REPORT 2008 4: /4
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SUBSTANTIAL INTERESTS IN THE SHARE CAPITAL OF THE
COMPANY (continued)
Notes:

1.

The share capital of Super Result is beneficially owned by Mr.
Chan, Ms. Tsui and Mr. Chui Hing Yee as to 46.7%, 46.7% and
6.6% respectively.

Allianz SE and Dresdner Bank Aktiengesellschaft were deemed to
be interested in the 17,155,000 shares held by Veer Palthe Voute
NV by virtue of indirect controlling interest of 81.1% and 100.0%
respectively in Veer Palthe Voute NV.

The capacity of Veer Palthe Voute NV in holding the 17,155,000
shares was an investment manager.

Commonwealth Bank of Australia was deemed to be interested in
the 18,072,000 shares held by First State Investments (Hong Kong)
Ltd by virtue of indirect controlling interest of 100.0% in First State
Investments (Hong Kong) Ltd.

The capacity of First State Investments (Hong Kong) Ltd in holding
the 18,072,000 shares was an investment manager.

The capacity of Queensland Investment Corporation holding the
20,000,000 shares was a trustee for Queensland Investment Trust
No.2.

Yeoman Capital Management Pte Ltd was deemed to be interested
in the 20,000,000 shares held by Queensland Investment
Corporation by virtue of direct controlling interest of 100.0% in
Queensland Investment Corporation. The capacity of Yeoman
Capital Management Pte Ltd in holding the 20,000,000 shares was
also an investment manager.

Yeoman Capital Management Pte Ltd was an indirectly controlled
corporation of Mr. Yeo and of his spouse, Ms. Lim. As a result, the
interest held by Yeoman Capital Management Pte Ltd was deemed
interest held by each of Mr. Yeo and Ms. Lim. 800,000 of these
shares were held by Ms. Lim as personal interest and Mr. Yeo was
deemed to be interested in the 800,000 shares held by Ms. Lim as
family interest.

The Bank of New York Mellon Corporation was deemed to be
interested in the 17,000,000 shares held by The Bank of New York
by virtue of direct controlling interest of 100.0% in The Bank of
New York.

The capacity of The Bank of New York in holding the 17,000,000
shares was a custodian corporation / an approved lending agent.

Apart from the foregoing, and other than the directors and the
chief executive of the company whose interests are set out in the
sections “Directors’ and chief executive’s interests in securities”
and “Share option scheme” above, no person was recorded in
the register kept by the company under section 336 of the SFO
as having an interest or a short position in the shares or
underlying shares of the company as at 31 March 2008.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contract of significance to which the company, any of its
holding company, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party,
in which a director of the company had a material interest,

subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the company’s
articles of association or the law in the Cayman Islands which
would oblige the company to offer new shares on a pro rata

basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S
LISTED SECURITIES

There were no purchases, sales or redemptions of the company’s
listed securities by the company or any of its subsidiaries during

the year.

PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report, the company has maintained the
prescribed public float required under the Listing Rules, based
on the information that is publicly available to the company and

within the knowledge of the directors of the company.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment. A resolution of the re-appointment of KPMG as
independent auditors of the company is to be proposed at the

forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the board

Chan Yum Kit

Chairman

Hong Kong, 22 July 2008
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T 37 A% BRI e o
Independent Auditor’s Report

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Moiselle International Holdings Limited

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Moiselle International Holdings Limited (“the company”) set out
on pages 33 to 126, which comprise the consolidated and
company balance sheets as at 31 March 2008, the consolidated
income statement, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year
then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies

and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting
policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in

the circumstances.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for

the contents of this report.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and true and
fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial

statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit

opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the company and of the
group as at 31 March 2008 and of the group’s profit and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong

Kong Companies Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

22 July 2008
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Consolidated Income Statement

BE-ZTT \GF=H=1—HI-4Z (JLE%F|R) For the year ended 31 March 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

—EBEN\F —TFLHF
2008 2007
Mt = T T
Note $’000 $000
=§ -] Turnover 3 415,464 352,217
$H € AR AN Cost of sales (104,280) (73,689)
EF Gross profit 311,184 278,528
Heb g A Other revenue 4 3,158 4,673
HAth i3 5 58 Other net income 4 435 485
SHER D KA Selling and distribution costs (196,390) (150,016)
THRHEMZEME Administrative and other operating expenses (60,428) (48,211)
TERR Profit from operations 57,959 85,459
BhE R AR Finance costs 5(a) (266) (365)
T5EB 2{HE Net valuation gains/(losses) on 13
Wi (E8) B8
— T GEEY - land and buildings 2,159 (55)
—REYE — investment properties 2,490 3,030
& F% Az Al Profit before taxation 5 62,342 88,069
iRET Income tax 6(a) (10,043) (9,815)
F AR Profit for the year 9, 26 52,299 78,254
ENEAREZERRZ Dividends payable to equity shareholders
rEERE : of the company attributable to
the year: 10
FREERRIKSTZ Interim dividend declared and paid
HRERR R during the year 11,281 14,098
HEREREZDIRZ Final dividend proposed after the
REARRE balance sheet date 19,742 33,844
31,023 47,942
BRER Earnings per share 11
AR Basic $0.19 $0.28
g Diluted $0.18 $0.27

FA0E126E ZMEBAM KRR 2 —B D ° The notes on pages 40 to 126 form part of these financial

statements.
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

R-ZENE=H=+—H (LABEFIR) At 31 March 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

—EEN\F —EFLF
2008 2007
ik Fr Fr T T
Note $/000 $’000 $'000 $/000
ERBEE Non-current assets
BE&EE Fixed assets
- REYHE — Investment properties 13 16,020 17,130
—-HibEEEE — Other fixed assets 13 230,911 165,334
246,931 182,464
HM&EE Other assets 15 20,519 13,558
EEFTBHRERE Deferred tax assets 24(b) 3,227 4,112
270,677 200,134
REBEE Current assets
Hih e mEE Other financial assets 16 490 4,359
FE Inventories 17 84,376 69,617
JE Ukt BR 7R % ELth FE Uk R Trade and other receivables 18 56,098 41,920
] B EF IE Tax recoverable 24(a) 1,260 1,695
HENEELZEY Cash and cash equivalents 19 81,579 90,306
223,803 207,897
REAE Current liabilities
P& 15 Bk % EL At P& 9 7K Trade and other payables 20 60,209 43,064
RITEX Bank overdrafts 21 1,499 -
FESFiE Tax payable 24(a) 4,486 5,446
66,194 48,510
REBEEZRE Net current assets 157,609 159,387
BERABDEEEE Total assets less current
liabilities 428,286 359,521
FREEE Non-current liabilities
ELEFEHERE Deferred tax liabilities 24(b) 19,204 7,967
EEFE NET ASSETS 409,082 351,554

MOISELLE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED H&FEBREESFRD =
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i B E AR

Consolidated Balance Sheet

R-ZZN\E=A=+—H (LUEKF7R) At 31 March 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

—EENF —EELHF
2008 2007

g F Fr T T

Note $000 $'000 $'000 $'000
EXRf#E Capital and reserves
[N Share capital 25 2,821 2,821
B Reserves 26 406,261 348,733
R RS TOTAL EQUITY 409,082 351,554

ESEN-EE/\FLtAS T BRURLHARY -

Chan Yum Kit

FA0E126BE Z2MIFB AT KIKRFK 2 —FD °

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on
22 July 2008.

EXE Directors

"G
Tsui How Kiu, Shirley

—_ — — — —

The notes on pages 40 to 126 form part of these financial

statements.
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Balance Sheet

RN-ZEENF=A=+—0 (LBHFIR) At 31 March 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

—EEN\F —EFLF
2008 2007
e T T T T
Note $000 $000 $000 $000
ERBEE Non-current assets
NG P v Interest in subsidiaries 14 172,752 138,658
REBEE Current assets
Hih e EE Other financial assets 16 490 4,359
JFE UK BR R K2 L At FE U R Trade and other receivables 18 109 20,465
HERIEELEBY Cash and cash equivalents 19 9,686 5,409
10,285 30,233
REBEE Current liabilities
FE{TERF R L FE{T 3K Trade and other payables 1,850 1,618
1,850 1,618
REBEEZRE Net current assets 8,435 28,615
EEFE NET ASSETS 181,187 167,273
BEXRHE Capital and reserves
B Share capital 25 2,821 2,821
B Reserves 26 178,366 164,452
BRREDS TOTAL EQUITY 181,187 167,273
EEER ST )\FLtA-t+ - ARELF Y - Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on
22 July 2008.
)
)
) EZE Directors
BRERA ®IE )
Chan Yum Kit Tsui How Kiu, Shirley )
FA0E126E ZMEBAVBHRER 2 -5 D - The notes on pages 40 to 126 form part of these financial
statements.
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A RE AR S ) 3R
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

BE-ZTT \GF=H=1—HI-4Z (JLE%F|R) For the year ended 31 March 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

—EBEN\F —TFLHF
2008 2007
Mt Fr T
Note $’000 $000
REA— B zEmEsE Total equity at 1 April 351,554 300,706
EERESERZ Net income recognised directly in equity:
WA FEE
BEHEREAT Exchange differences on translation of
MMk 2 ERER financial statements of PRC subsidiaries 26 11,774 1,786
BEEGRAz L RESEY 2 Surplus on revaluation of land and buildings
B E  SHIRIEL held for own use, net of deferred tax
Frig#t 26 38,580 18,648
BEERERERZ Net income for the year recognised
FRYAFE directly in equity 50,354 20,434
R E TR F Net profit for the year 26 52,299 78,254
FAERBBAR Total recognised income and expense
B for the year 102,653 98,688
REESRILEZRE  Dividends declared or approved
during the year 10 (45,125) (47,932)
BEXGHEERZ Movements in equity arising from
RS capital transactions:
BIBEBREST B2 1T 2’10 Shares issued under share option scheme 25 - 1
MRAD SR E W Share premium received 26 - 91
HERRETELRS Net increase in shareholders’ equity
FEE 2 RRER arising from capital transactions with
2hnFEE shareholders - 92
R=EA=+—HZEZEHEE Total equity at 31 March 409,082 351,554
BA0E126E 2MEBAVBHRER 2 -2 - The notes on pages 40 to 126 form part of these financial
statements.
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HEBRESmER
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

BE-_TZT \F=A=+—HILFE (LLB%F|FR) For the year ended 31 March 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

—EENE —TELE
2008 2007
M &£ T Fr T T
Note $000 $000 $000 $000
RETH Operating activities
PR Al % A Profit before taxation 62,342 88,069
FEIEE - Adjustments for:
-t REEYR — Net valuation gains on
REMEZ(HE land and buildings and
W F 5 investment properties (4,649) (2,975)
e — Depreciation 17,834 12,934
-BEEEEZHEERR — Impairment losses on fixed assets 344 =
—FEMX — Interest expense 266 365
—FEWA — Interest income (1,783) (2,712)
- HEREEEZEE — Net loss on sale of fixed assets
R 419 569
-~ BEERSCDERK — Net realised and unrealised
REH (FH) (gains)/losses on trading
B8 35 securities (23) 39
-EX (%) BE — Foreign exchange (gain)/loss (113) 1,414
EEESREZ Operating profit before
BRI changes in working capital 74,637 97,703
HAhE =1L Increase in other assets (6,895) (1,440)
FEEm Increase in inventories (12,341) (15,234)
R LT BR o0 I L At P LKL RR Increase in trade and other
212 receivables (12,025) (5,266)
FE{TERFN R E I FE AT 3K Increase in trade and other
2 3Em payables 15,367 11,733
REXBEEZRE Cash generated from operations 58,743 87,496
(BfY) /RESBE Tax (paid)/refunded
- BNEBNEH - Hong Kong Profits Tax paid (1,682) (1,309)
—REIFBREHR - Hong Kong Profits Tax refunded 592 =
— B HERE - PRC tax paid (9,028) (6,211)
RETHFEZ Net cash generated from operating
REeRHEE activities carried forward 48,625 79,976

MOISELLE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED H&FEBREESFRD =
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

TR NFE=A=+—HILFEE (LB%5|R) For the year ended 31 March 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

—EENEF —EELHF
2008 2007
(g3 T T T T
Note $000 $’000 $000 $000
AAREEBHREZ Net cash generated from operating
HeFE activities brought forward 48,625 79,976
REED Investing activities
FHREE=EAERE 2 Increase in deposits with banks (3,333) =
SRATEFRIE N with maturity more than
three months when placed
BABEEEN Payment for purchase of fixed assets (24,078) (31,982)
HEBEEEMSHE Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 343 -
BARZIBESAR Payment for purchase of
held-to-maturity securities (15,525) (42,713)
EZ R EE S AR HRRE Proceeds received upon maturity
ELI&HXZF)??%%’( of held-to-maturity securities 19,500 42,900
2UWRFE Interest received 1,770 2,491
BEZEMAZES T Net cash used in investing activities (21,323) (29,304)
METE Financing activities
BERTEN Repayment of bank loans - (3,756)
RIBBRET 21217 Proceeds from shares issued
IRAD 2 FTSFIE under share option scheme - 92
EFAE Interest paid (266) (365)
2RE Dividends paid (45,125) (47,932)
METHMARSFH Net cash used in financing
activities (45,391) (51,961)
HeRESEEY Net decrease in cash and
WA EEE cash equivalents (18,089) (1,289)
ROB—HZRER Cash and cash equivalents
ReZEY at 1 April 90,306 91,595
EXSE o HE Effect of foreign exchange
rate changes 4,530 -
R=BA=+—HzH&Kk  Cash and cash equivalents
HeEEY at 31 March 19 76,747 90,306
FEHFRERS . Major non-cash transaction:

RZZZL & REBELL295,000T BRI S

HE—

FA0E126E ZMFB AT KRK 2 —D °

MOISELLE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED H&FEBREESFRA =

In 2007, the group traded-in a motor vehicle for $295,000.

The notes on pages 40 to 126 form part of these financial
statements.
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S 785 A

Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA #5177 ) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1. FESFBXR
@ BHEH
RYBRRERREBEFMAS
B FAER (B BMHRELER)
(LEBEESMEER 2@ (E B
B mEER) (FBEFTEAR
28) BELRSTRAREE(D
ARG 2 WBERERE - NU B
RN (EBHAERZMARAR
(TB 32 P 1) 78 55 E R B 2 38 AR
BRAE -UTRAKRERANEE
SR BRME-

BESTMASEEME THER
BIETH(ERBYHREER) - I
RAKERARB 2AETHEE
R AR P ERA o M EE2E SR A
S HERBEZESTHE - B
RERZEEAEEHEBZEREM
EYETBRREIMRREZSY
BHRRANZEH -

MOISELLE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED H&FEBREESFRD =

1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(@)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which
collective term includes all applicable individual
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial
statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). A
summary of the significant accounting policies

adopted by the group is set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for
early adoption for the current accounting period
of the group and the company. Note 2 provides
information on any changes in accounting policies
resulting from initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant
to the group for the current and prior accounting

periods reflected in these financial statements.
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1. FEETBER (8)

(b) HMEBRZEREE
BE-ZZENF=ZA=+—HBLHE
E2ReBEREEEAATARE
MEBARGEAIAER]) -

RAMBERRARAZAERES
BERAE HETHEEDUARF
BYIR(RTX2ETBRMER)
BRI :

- REME (RHEE) S

- HttHE L REEY  Z
ST REENZATFEE
ERBERBI DR E
EEXEAHEEREARMENAS
(REFEFETORI(@Q) » R

- HERE (RHFE1) °

RELEFE(EEBMBREEL)
ZHBRRFEZEEEF LA
Rt REBR - MZEHE - mEt R
BREVERRZEARFHARZ
EEREBE WAKRKBXEHHE-
ZEMTRBEABRRILBREREL
BREEBHEERZERRTIE
FHZEEAMERABEEMAEL
FEERBREERERB A ARBER
HitREMEH 2 EEREEZIR
EEMELMATZ2EE - BEHT
HERBIREEE -

MOISELLE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED H&FEBREESFRA =

S 785 A B

Notes to the Financial Statements

(A7 851 ’R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2008 comprise the company and
its subsidiaries (together referred to as the

“group”).

The measurement basis used in the preparation of
the financial statements is the historical cost basis
except that the following assets are stated at their
fair value as explained in the accounting policies

set out below:

- investment properties (see note 1(e));

- other leasehold land and buildings, for
which the fair values cannot be measured
separately at the inception of the lease and
the entire lease is classified as a finance

lease (see notes 1(f) and 1(g)); and

- investments in securities (see note 1(d)).

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires management
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience
and various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results of
which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that
are not readily apparent from other sources.

Actual results may differ from these estimates.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA #5177 ) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1. FESFHBEAE)
by HBBRZEREE(F)

RNEE A AEMGT RAEBRR
TG - St 2B MR
EEH AABEZLERGIETE
MRS - MR E At 2 BRI &
EEHRUREE  ABBELER
EHRUESEER

(0 MEQA
MEARREZAEEEHNAA -
EREEBREZENE D RN THE
MEE R > WA E TS+
BAR EAREFNEFEE-BEEA
TENBEEERERCEEEEH
FHENREE -

SERMERRNREY B ESH
HEAMBEERFKRLLABLEESRS
BBBRERPEAFTE FERNIE
RNBBENEERALREZREEE
MEMRBRERN  SERRKRS
MBERREGZBIEE - FERIER
SREENARERBRENEHEL X
EARSRENER EEHBBEIR
REBFBEETECEREECHR
HAE °

AR EEEBERMTRKELDA
MRE  REEAREEARER
B (RHE1(h) BAK -

MOISELLE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED H&FEBREESFRD =

1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(b)

()

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
(continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects

both current and future periods.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the group.
Control exists when the group has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies of an
entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. In
assessing control, potential voting rights that

presently are exercisable are taken into account.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into
the consolidated financial statements from the
date that control commences until the date that
control ceases. Intra-group balances and
transactions and any unrealised profits arising
from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full
in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in the same way as
unrealised gains but only to the extent that there

is no evidence of impairment.
In the company’s balance sheet, an investment in

a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment

losses (see note 1(h)).
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1. FESFBERAE)
d) REBERREIAZBZFZEMGRKRE
FEERARAREERRAEZ
RE (RHMBLRZRERIN) 2
KM -

REFEEZZ2RENDIEAR
BEERANSEAFEIER -RE
HEBE AFEDNERE Bt
EEXEZEAREREBREIDNIER K
BR-BARZASREMMMZFE
THARAB B EE (o) (i) BT 8L 2 BURHERD.
AEETERERRERREIE
BFE -

AEBER,RADAERRHEE

REAFEEIB2EHERRS
DABRAKEEIARSF -BAEZE
INBHANLEAFENR S EA
REEEBEXRBER - HE ARG
BB R R A BB E R R 5 R
(RMEEET(h) ©

ZEREDRAKEER /RAELT
AHEBE HEZSREINAERE
W2 AR RRER

(e) REYE
RENEREARNESKBAR,
FAEAEEMUEEEZEER
BFEZLHER SEEYEKE
1(g) B EEREREERKHA
BEEZ Lo

MOISELLE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED H&FEBREESFRA =

S 785 A B

Notes to the Financial Statements

(A7 851 ’R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d)

(e)

Other investments in debt and equity securities
The group’s and the company’s policies for
investments in debt and equity securities, other

than investments in subsidiaries, are as follows:

Investments in securities held for trading are
classified as current assets and are initially stated
at fair value. At each balance sheet date the fair
value is remeasured, with any resultant gain or
loss being recognised in profit or loss. The net
gain or loss recognised in profit or loss does not
include any interest earned on these investments
as these are recognised in accordance with the

policies set out in note 1(q)(iii).

Dated debt securities that the group and/or the
company have the positive ability and intention to
hold to maturity are classified as held-to-maturity
securities. Held-to-maturity securities are initially
recognised in the balance sheet at fair value plus
transaction costs. Subsequently, they are stated in
the balance sheet at amortised cost less

impairment losses (see note 1(h)).

Investments are recognised/derecognised on the
date the group and/or the company commits to

purchase/sell the investments or they expire.

Investment property

Investment properties are land and/or buildings
which are owned or held under a leasehold
interest (see note 1(g)) to earn rental income and/
or for capital appreciation. These include land

held for a currently undetermined future use.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA #5177 ) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1. FESFHBEAE)
() REWMHE(E)
RENERLAFEECAEERE
KPP -REWELAFEEZEZEH
FHRERLERENEFELEZE
RS RERIER DR ER -
REMECHESBARRRBMHE
T(en(ii) Frsfi 75 =X A BR ©

MRERAEEUELEHES AR
BEURDNEESWAR RREAREG
B FHECEZEREEYEZE
ERRRENE - 2ERREY
2Ry gDz ARG X ED
MERAEFA 2 EREWME1(Q)—
B MEBRAZERRTENR
EHEHEZHMIREWEMER -
HENRZ ARG XEI R E
1(g) °

() HttEE&EE
RESCEHEFF 2Lk Lt £
ZEEY MZELIHREEN 2
HERZZAFETEREEHSR
BEVE BEZEVYTIEREE
EHEEME1QHEREE AR
EERBERUNEGESHIE IR
EMPHZLAFERERZAT
=

MOISELLE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED H&FEBREESFRD =

1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(e)

®

Investment property (continued)

Investment properties are stated in the balance
sheet at fair value. Any gain or loss arising from a
change in fair value or from the retirement or
disposal of an investment property is recognised
in profit or loss. Rental income from investment
properties is accounted for as described in note
1(q)(ii).

When the group holds a property interest under
an operating lease to earn rental income and/or
for capital appreciation, the interest is classified
and accounted for as an investment property on a
property-by-property basis. Any such property
interest which has been classified as an
investment property is accounted for as if it were
held under a finance lease (see note 1(g)), and the
same accounting policies are applied to that
interest as are applied to other investment
properties leased under finance leases. Lease

payments are accounted for as described in note
1(g).

Other fixed assets

The land held for own use under operating leases
and buildings thereon, where the fair values of the
leasehold interest in the land and buildings cannot
be measured separately at the inception of the
lease and the building is not clearly held under an
operating lease (see note 1(g)) are stated in the
balance sheet at their revalued amount, being
their fair value at the date of the revaluation less

any subsequent accumulated depreciation.
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EEEEZHMBERRARERE
FERBEBEREEEERRAY
BR (B MaE1(h)) 5

EMBFERNYEREENED
—REBARBBEE ETHER
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- MRHREMEA MEAE
ANBMBEEBRRZEEE
EBEEMAT ARBHE
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S 785 A B

Notes to the Financial Statements

(A7 851 ’R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

®

Other fixed assets (continued)

Revaluations are performed with sufficient
regularity to ensure that the carrying amount of
these assets does not differ materially from that
which would be determined using fair values at

the balance sheet date.

Other items of fixed assets are stated in the
balance sheet at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses (see note

1(h)).

Changes arising on the revaluation of properties
held for own use are generally dealt with in

reserves. The only exceptions are as follows:

- when a deficit arises on revaluation, it will
be charged to profit or loss to the extent
that it exceeds the amount held in the
reserve in respect of that same asset

immediately prior to the revaluation; and

- when a surplus arises on revaluation, it
will be credited to profit or loss to the
extent that a deficit on revaluation in
respect of that same asset had previously

been charged to profit or loss.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or
disposal of an item of fixed assets are determined
as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and
are recognised in profit or loss on the date of
retirement or disposal. Any related revaluation
surplus is transferred from the revaluation reserve

to retained profits.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA #5177 ) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1. EESFTBERGE) 1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

) HthEEEE (&) (f) Other fixed assets (continued)
EEEEHENTERERERE Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost or
BHIEF O B F R HEE KA valuation of items of fixed assets, less their
BEREFRGERB(EB)  FEL estimated residual value, if any, using the straight
SEWT line method over their estimated useful lives as

follows:
- UABEE T 2 BEYR - buildings situated on leasehold land are
BTz K EwH PR =& & depreciated over the shorter of the
A A E R (BI& A B 8 8 &F unexpired terms of lease and their
BE+H) 2BREEFEITE - estimated useful lives, being 50 years from

the date of completion.

= HEVREE EERREEH (UREERE)

- Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of 5 years and the period of the lease

= TERE R TF

- Plant and machinery 10 years

= RHMREERE EET+F

- Furniture and fixtures 5 to 10 years

- BERRBLAEERS =Z5F

- Computer and office equipment 3 to 5 years

- AE hE

- Motor vehicles 5 years

EEEEEBBE2TRIBLERE Where parts of an item of fixed assets have
FEREHE  HE ZHRANGEE different useful lives, the cost or valuation of the
TEABrzEREEBEESE 5 item is allocated on a reasonable basis between
B2 2R EFE - EEZAE the parts and each part is depreciated separately.
AERRAERGERE (WE) ESF Both the useful life of an asset and its residual
BET e value, if any, are reviewed annually.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(A7 851 ’R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1. FESFBERAE) 1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(g HEEZE (@  Leased assets
HEZHEAERR -—EXZH— An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a
ZIEBRS  HEFEFNTRRE series of transactions, is or contains a lease if the
ENHBEREBNRI A —RT group determines that the arrangement conveys a
HEMERASEEE - BE—HEHZ right to use a specific asset or assets for an agreed
FREEEADNENZZHEZAE period of time in return for a payment or a series
MAERZZH 2 EEZEN - of payments. Such a determination is made based

on an evaluation of the substance of the
arrangement and is regardless of whether the

arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.

(i) HEFFAEFESEZ D (i) Classification of assets leased to the group
REERBEEFAEZEE Assets that are held by group under leases
MmEREBRIBDEERESR which transfer to the group substantially all
BADYEREAEE2H the risks and rewards of ownership are
ENsEARERE-TE classified as being held under finance
BRERIMDEERESE leases. Leases which do not transfer
MaEsHED2EAKEMR substantially all the risks and rewards of
& T A ownership to the group are classified as

operating leases, with the following

exceptions:
= HREREHERES - property held under operating
ZYEAZTHER leases that would otherwise meet
EYE2ES AR the definition of an investment
BRMEZEEDE property is classified as an
AREWE Mo investment property on a property-
HAREWX IR by-property basis and, if classified
EREHERE AR as investment property, is
(RKiEE1e) s & accounted for as if held under a

finance lease (see note 1(e)); and
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA #5177 ) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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TEEFHBE(H)
(® HEEEGRE)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(g) Leased assets (continued)

(i) HEFLAEBEEZ 7B (i) Classification of assets leased to the group

(#&) (continued)

- RELEHSRERD - land held for own use under an
Azt mMHEADF operating lease, the fair value of
BEEFENE FEH which cannot be measured
BeRFRESE separately from the fair value of a
Mz A FEDRE building situated thereon at the
2 @ HBIRIE inception of the lease, is accounted
MEHEFE AR for as being held under a finance
HEEERFERERL lease, unless the building is also
EHERFERBG - clearly held under an operating
mEMS HEEN lease. For these purposes, the
ZEERAEEEH R inception of the lease is the time
AMVEE KR & that the lease was first entered into
REFABAZEER by the group, or taken over from
B2 e the previous lessee.

(i) AHEHEEH (i) Operating lease charges

MBEAEEEBAKEHER
EMERAZEE  BIREME
ERENNIREEHER
RMENETHBAR UEH
EEARTER BUAEH
EEREEEMRREESR
BEATE B W SR RIBR
ShoEEBEWMBMBE RN
BEERGEESRPRER
RAEFNRBENAKED
DoREHEHEHELENE
STHIBRERSE R -

WEREBEEHEHERT L
HMRASREENBRER
EHE EEZMECIS
REWE (RME1e) BIBR
e

MOISELLE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED H&FEBREESFRD =

Where the group has the use of assets held
under operating leases, payments made
under the leases are charged to profit or
loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease
term, except where an alternative basis is
more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the leased
asset. Lease incentives received are
recognised in profit or loss as an integral
part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals are charged to
profit or loss in the accounting period in
which they are incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an
operating lease is amortised on a straight-
line basis over the period of the lease term
except where the property is classified as
an investment property (see note 1(e)).
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S 785 A B

Notes to the Financial Statements

(A7 851 ’R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(h)  Impairment of assets

(i)

MOISELLE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED H&FEBREESFRA =

Impairment of investments in debt and
equity securities and other receivables

Investments in debt securities (other than
investments in subsidiaries: see note 1(h)
(ii)) and other current and non-current
receivables that are stated at cost or
amortised cost are reviewed at each
balance sheet date to determine whether
there is objective evidence of impairment.
Objective evidence of impairment includes
observable data that comes to the attention
of the group about one or more of the

following loss events:

- significant financial difficulty of the
debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a
default or delinquency in interest or

principal payments;

- it becoming probable that the
debtor will enter bankruptcy or

other financial reorganisation;

- significant changes in the
technological, market, economic or
legal environment that have an

adverse effect on the debtor; and
- a significant or prolonged decline

in the fair value of an investment in

an equity instrument below its cost.
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1. FESFBRER#A) 1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(h) EERME (&) (h) Impairment of assets (continued)
(i) EBERKEEZEFREREM (i) Impairment of investments in debt and
FEW 2 B () equity securities and other receivables

NERENEREBEFE &
EEEREBBRLEATA
XA

- B A 42 8 95 AR AN B BR
2 FE W BR TR R EL AR
BREBRREME A
EE - REBBERZ
HEERMEEE MG
ARRERERELZ
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B(HTATEBE
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HEHBHMARGER)
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RETDREEE T
EEARRURARSE

BEENBEIEERRS
L —BFRE °

MOISELLE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED H&FEBREESFRD =

(continued)
If any such evidence exists, any
impairment loss is determined and

recognised as follows:

- For trade and other current
receivables and other financial
assets carried at amortised cost, the
impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate
(i.e. the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition of
these assets), where the effect of
discounting is material. This
assessment is made collectively
where financial assets carried at
amortised cost share similar risk
characteristics, such as similar past
due status, and have not been
individually assessed as impaired.
Future cash flows for financial
assets which are assessed for
impairment collectively are based
on historical loss experience for
assets with credit risk characteristics

similar to the collective group.
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MOISELLE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED H&FEBREESFRA =

S 785 A B

Notes to the Financial Statements

(A7 851 ’R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of assets (continued)

Impairment of investments in debt and

equity securities and other receivables

(continued)
If in a subsequent period the
amount of an impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be
linked objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised, the impairment loss
is reversed through profit or loss. A
reversal of an impairment loss shall
not result in the asset’s carrying
amount exceeding that which
would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised

in prior years.

Impairment losses are written off against
the corresponding assets directly, except
for impairment losses recognised in respect
of trade debtors included within trade and
other receivables, whose recovery is
considered doubtful but not remote. In this
case, the impairment losses for doubtful
debts are recorded using an allowance
account. When the group is satisfied that
recovery is remote, the amount considered
irrecoverable is written off against trade
debtors directly and any amounts held in
the allowance account relating to that debt
are reversed. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously charged to the
allowance account are reversed against the
allowance account. Other changes in the
allowance account and subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written

off directly are recognised in profit or loss.
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1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(h)

Impairment of assets (continued)

(if)

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of
information are reviewed at each balance
sheet date to identify indications that the
following assets may be impaired or an
impairment loss previously recognised no

longer exists or may have decreased:

- fixed assets (other than properties

carried at revalued amounts); and

- investments in subsidiaries.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s

recoverable amount is estimated.

- STE A Y HEE - Calculation of recoverable amount
& =R AU 2 EE L The recoverable amount of an asset
HEEFENEAE is the greater of its net selling price
EMEFRNRS HE and value in use. In assessing value
BE EFHFERE in use, the estimated future cash
B 26 A RBA flows are discounted to their
I E R AR E AR KRR present value using a pre-tax
ERENEZHE - discount rate that reflects current
ZMEEERRRT market assessments of time value of
S ERAFENER money and the risks specific to the
BEEENZEEN asset. Where an asset does not
BERKE MREE generate cash inflows largely
FEENRERAE independent of those from other
RETBIYIRHEME assets, the recoverable amount is

EFEENRER
A BIEEBYEE
RERANZNEE
R (MRETELEE
fi) REE 7 B &
F o

MOISELLE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED H&FEBREESFRD =

determined for the smallest group
of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-

generating unit).
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S 785 A B

Notes to the Financial Statements

(A7 851 ’R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(h)

MOISELLE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED H&FEBREESFRA =

Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Impairment of other assets (continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in
profit or loss whenever the carrying
amount of an asset, or the cash-
generating unit to which it belongs,
exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses recognised in
respect of cash-generating units are
allocated to reduce the carrying
amount of the assets in the unit
(or group of units) on a pro rata
basis, except that the carrying value
of an asset will not be reduced
below its individual fair value
less costs to sell, or value in use, if

determinable.

Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if
there has been a favourable change
in the estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount. A reversal
of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that
would have been determined
had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years. Reversals
of impairment losses are credited to
profit or loss in the year in which

the reversals are recognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA #5177 ) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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MOISELLE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED H&FEBREESFRD =

1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(h)

(i)

Impairment of assets (continued)

(i) Interim financial reporting and impairment
Under the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange, the
group is required to prepare an interim
financial report in compliance with HKAS
34, Interim financial reporting, in respect
of the first six months of the financial year.
At the end of the interim period, the group
applies the same impairment testing,
recognition, and reversal criteria as it
would at the end of the financial year (see
notes 1(h)(i) and (ii)).

Inventories
Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net

realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the first-in-first-out
formula and comprises all costs of purchase, costs
of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing
the inventories to their present location and

condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated

costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of
those inventories is recognised as an expense in
the period in which the related revenue is
recognised. The amount of any write-down of
inventories to net realisable value and all losses of
inventories are recognised as an expense in the
period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount
of any reversal of any write-down of inventories is
recognised as a reduction in the amount of
inventories recognised as an expense in the period

in which the reversal occurs.
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MOISELLE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED H&FEBREESFRA =

S 785 A B

Notes to the Financial Statements

(A7 851 ’R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

()

(k)

0]

(m)

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially
recognised at fair value and thereafter stated at
amortised cost less allowance for impairment of
doubtful debts (see note 1(h)), except where the
receivables are interest-free loans made to related
parties without any fixed repayment terms or the
effect of discounting would be immaterial. In such
cases, the receivables are stated at cost less

allowance for impairment of doubtful debts.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised
initially at fair value less attributable transaction
costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-
bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost
with any difference between cost and redemption
value being recognised in profit or loss over the
period of the borrowings using the effective

interest method.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised
at fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost
unless the effect of discounting would be

immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value, having
been within three months of maturity at
acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the group’s
cash management are also included as a
component of cash and cash equivalents for the

purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA #5177 ) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(n)

MOISELLE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED H&FEBREESFRD =

Employee benefits

(i)

(ii)

Short-term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual
leave, contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans and the cost of non-
monetary benefits are accrued in the year
in which the associated services are
rendered by employees. Where payment or
settlement is deferred and the effect would
be material, these amounts are stated at

their present values.

Share-based payment

The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee
cost with a corresponding increase in a
capital reserve within equity. The fair value
is measured at grant date using the
binomial lattice model, taking into account
the terms and conditions upon which the
options were granted. Where the
employees have to meet vesting conditions
before becoming unconditionally entitled
to the share options, the total estimated
fair value of the share options is spread
over the vesting period, taking into
account the probability that the options

will vest.
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S 785 A B

Notes to the Financial Statements

(A7 851 ’R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(n) Employee benefits (continued)

(i)

(iif)

MOISELLE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED H&FEBREESFRA =

Share-based payment (continued)

During the vesting period, the number of
share options that is expected to vest is
reviewed. Any adjustment to the
cumulative fair value recognised in prior
years is charged/credited to profit or loss
for the year of the review, unless the
original employee expenses qualify for
recognition as an asset, with a
corresponding adjustment to the capital
reserve. On vesting date, the amount
recognised as an expense is adjusted to
reflect the actual number of share options
that vest (with a corresponding adjustment
to the capital reserve) except where
forfeiture is only due to not achieving
vesting conditions that relate to the market
price of the company’s shares. The equity
amount is recognised in the capital reserve
until either the option is exercised (when it
is transferred to the share premium
account) or the option expires (when it is

released directly to retained profits).

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised when,
and only when, the group demonstrably
commits itself to terminate employment or
to provide benefits as a result of voluntary
redundancy by having a detailed formal
plan which is without realistic possibility

of withdrawal.
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1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(0)

MOISELLE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED H&FEBREESFRD =

Income tax

(i)

(if)

(i)

Income tax for the year comprises current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets
and liabilities. Current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised in the profit or loss except to
the extent that they relate to items
recognised directly in equity, in which case

they are recognised in equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on
the taxable income for the year, using tax
rates enacted or substantively enacted at
the balance sheet date, and any adjustment

to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise
from deductible and taxable temporary
differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused

tax losses and unused tax credits.
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5 75 A

Notes to the Financial Statements

(A7 851 ’R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(0) Income tax (continued)
(iii) (continued)

MOISELLE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED H&FEBREESFRA =

All deferred tax liabilities, and all deferred
tax assets to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are
recognised. Future taxable profits that may
support the recognition of deferred tax
assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise
from the reversal of existing taxable
temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation
authority and the same taxable entity, and
are expected to reverse either in the same
period as the expected reversal of the
deductible temporary difference or in
periods into which a tax loss arising from
the deferred tax asset can be carried back
or forward. The same criteria are adopted
when determining whether existing taxable
temporary differences support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising
from unused tax losses and credits, that is,
those differences are taken into account if
they relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are
expected to reverse in a period, or periods,
in which the tax loss or credit can be

utilised.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is
measured based on the expected manner
of realisation or settlement of the carrying
amount of the assets and liabilities, using
tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax

assets and liabilities are not discounted.
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FTEGTHEE) 1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(0) Fri8 %t (&) (0) Income tax (continued)
(iii) (#& (i) (continued)
rEBEESEEERFTRG The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset
EEMEHEENRA S is reviewed at each balance sheet date and
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MOISELLE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED HFEBREESFRA =

(iv)

is reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available to allow the related tax benefit
to be utilised. Any such reduction is
reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profits will

be available.

Current tax balances and deferred tax
balances, and movements therein, are
presented separately from each other and
are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred
tax assets against deferred tax liabilities, if
the company or the group has the legally
enforceable right to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the

following additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and
liabilities, the company or the
group intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously;

or
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(A7 851 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1. EESTBEERGE) 1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(o) FiiEBi (&) (0)  Income tax (continued)
(iv) (#& (iv) (continued)
= ELEREMEENE = in the case of deferred tax assets

BELEEMEE
7R ER[E) — B A5 R
AT ES -HEBK

and liabilities, if they relate to
income taxes levied by the same

taxation authority on either:

(p)

MBI EEE

- B-EHE - the same taxable entity; or
B

= TENERE = different taxable entities,

e Es
HEER®S

which, in each future period

in which significant amounts

&8 78 58 K28 of deferred tax liabilities or
BEEFRBHEA assets are expected to be
BEEEFEDR settled or recovered, intend
REIREFTE to realise the current tax
HEE K assets and settle the current
B KB A tax liabilities on a net basis
REREEE or realise and settle
WA FT 5B simultaneously.
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(p)  Financial guarantees issued, provisions and

contingent liabilities

(1)

MOISELLE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED H&FEBREESFRA =

Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that

require the issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to

make specified payments to reimburse the

beneficiary to the guarantee (the “holder”)

for a loss the holder incurs because a

specified debtor fails to make payment

when due in accordance with the terms of

a debt instrument.
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(LA ¥ 51 7R ) (Expressed

in Hong Kong dollars)
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1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(p) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and

contingent liabilities (continued)

(1)

MOISELLE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED HFEBREESFRA =

Financial guarantees issued (continued)

Where the group issues a financial
guarantee, the fair value of the guarantee
(being the transaction price, unless the fair
value can otherwise be reliably estimated)
is initially recognised as deferred income
within trade and other payables. Where
consideration is received or receivable for
the issuance of the guarantee, the
consideration is recognised in accordance
with the group’s policies applicable to that
category of asset. Where no such
consideration is received or receivable, an
immediate expense is recognised in profit
or loss on initial recognition of any

deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially
recognised as deferred income is amortised
in profit or loss over the term of the
guarantee as income from financial
guarantees issued. In addition, provisions
are recognised in accordance with note
1(p)(ii) if and when (i) it becomes probable
that the holder of the guarantee will call
upon the group under the guarantee, and
(ii) the amount of that claim on the group
is expected to exceed the amount currently
carried in trade and other payables in
respect of that guarantee i.e. the amount
initially recognised, less accumulated

depreciation.
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B 785 A

Notes to the Financial Statements

(A7 851 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(p)  Financial guarantees issued, provisions and

contingent liabilities (continued)

(ii)

MOISELLE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED H&FEBREESFRA =

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the
group or the company has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result
of a past event, it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the
time value of money is material, provisions
are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the

obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the
amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent
liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events
are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of

economic benefits is remote.
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1. FESHEHE(E) 1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
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MOISELLE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED HFEBREESFRA =

Revenue recognition

Provided it is probable that all the economic
benefits will flow to the group and the revenue
and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably,

revenue is recognised in profit or loss as follows:

(i) Sale of goods
Revenue is recognised when goods are
delivered to the customers which is taken
to be the point in time when the customers
have accepted the goods and the related
risks and rewards of ownership. Revenue
excludes value added tax or other sales
taxes and is after deduction of any trade

discounts.

(i) Rental income from operating leases
Rental income receivable under operating
leases is recognised in profit or loss in
equal instalments over the periods covered
by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of
the pattern of benefits to be derived from
the use of leased asset. Lease incentives
granted are recognised in profit or loss as
an integral part of the aggregate net lease

payments receivable.

(iii) Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues

using effective interest method.

(iv)  Service fee income
Service fee income is recognised when the
related services are rendered and the
amount receivable can be measured

reliably.
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MOISELLE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED H&FEBREESFRA =

B 785 A

Notes to the Financial Statements

(A7 851 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(r)

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the transaction dates. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the balance sheet date. Exchange gains and losses

are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the transaction dates. Non-
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling

at the dates the fair value was determined.

The results of foreign operations are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates
approximating the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the dates of the transactions. Balance sheet items
are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet
date. The resulting exchange differences are

recognised directly in a separate component of

equity.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences recognised in
equity which relate to that foreign operation is
included in the calculation of the profit or loss on

disposal.
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1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(s)

(®)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are expensed in profit or loss in

the period in which they are incurred.

Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, a

party is considered to be related to the group if:

(i)

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

the party has the ability, directly or
indirectly through one or more
intermediaries, to control the group or
exercise significant influence over the
group in making financial and operating
policy decisions, or has joint control over

the group;

the group and the party are subject to

common control;

the party is an associate of the group or a
joint venture in which the group is a

venturer;

the party is a member of key management
personnel of the group or the group’s
parent, or a close family member of such
an individual, or is an entity under the
control, joint control or significant

influence of such individuals;

the party is a close family member of a
party referred to in (i) or is an entity under
the control, joint control or significant

influence of such individuals; or

the party is a post-employment benefit plan
which is for the benefit of employees of the
group or of any entity that is a related

party of the group.
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MOISELLE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED H&FEBREESFRA =

B 785 A

Notes to the Financial Statements

(A7 851 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(t)

(u)

Related parties (continued)

Close family members of an individual are those
family members who may be expected to
influence, or be influenced by, that individual in

their dealings with the entity.

Segment reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the
group that is engaged in providing products or
services within a particular economic
environment (geographical segment), which is
subject to risks and rewards that are different from

those of other segments.

Segment revenue, expenses, results, assets and
liabilities include items directly attributable to a
segment as well as those that can be allocated on
a reasonable basis to that segment. For example,
segment assets may include inventories, trade
receivables and fixed assets. Segment revenue,
expenses, assets, and liabilities are determined
before intra-group balances and intra-group
transactions are eliminated as part of the
consolidation process, except to the extent that
such intra-group balances and transactions are
between group entities within a single segment.
Inter-segment pricing is based on similar terms as

those available to other external parties.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost
incurred during the period to acquire segment
assets (both tangible and intangible) that are

expected to be used for more than one period.

Unallocated items mainly comprise financial and
corporate assets, interest-bearing loans,
borrowings, tax balances, corporate and financing

expenses.

ANNUAL REPORT 2008 448k

MOISELLE

67



MOISELLE

S 785 A

Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA #5177 ) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BN BEZE2E
ERSMASCHMAE THEREEBT
(BRBYHHREED)  ARAEBRAA
Al ZASTTHBERERR TR BHRM

ZERRWBEYRBEZINFEEARZ
EPBRBRCEABRHRAEMERLE -
AT HREAC(E B REER) F758
[EMTH  HEIR(EBEER)E 1R
ZEATTHHERE 2 EXKE] -
LLEEMT THRESE :

HRERA(E BB REER)E75% - B
BREFERLAEEERIACEEMR
ZETACZHERABEE 2R BB
ERB(ERBETERDE2NEMTA :
BENRZRIVEFBEZENFR - ZE
MBERRCHFHZSKE SR BN E
27 °

(BREER)FE 1R 2B EBEHE 2K
BER URHEFAKFZEHNRAIEH
MARBREEER BN BERFGE-
ZEH W BHANMEE25 -

(BRUBHREE FE7TRR(BBEHE
ADEIR BT LS H M BRRER 2
BEz2IR BANAEBREAZE -

AEENEEARASH BB RERZ
RT3 2RI S 2 R (R I RE34) °

MOISELLE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED HFEBREESFRA =

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The HKICPA has issued a number of new and revised
HKFRSs and Interpretations that are first effective or
available for early adoption for the current accounting

period of the group and the company.

There have been no significant changes to the accounting
policies applied in these financial statements for the years
presented as a result of these developments. However, as
a result of the adoption of HKFRS 7, Financial
instruments: Disclosures and the amendment to HKAS 1,
Presentation of financial statements: Capital disclosures,
there have been some additional disclosures provided as

follows:

As a result of the adoption of HKFRS 7, the financial
statements include expanded disclosure about the
significance of the group’s financial instruments and the
nature and extent of risks arising from those instruments,
compared with the information previously required to be
disclosed by HKAS 32, Financial instruments: Disclosure
and presentation. These disclosures are provided
throughout these financial statements, in particular in

note 27.

The amendment to HKAS 1 introduces additional
disclosure requirements to provide information about the
level of capital and the group’s and the company’s
objectives, policies and processes for managing capital.

These new disclosures are set out in note 25.

Both HKFRS 7 and the amendment to HKAS 1 do not
have any material impact on the classification,
recognition and measurement of the amounts recognised

in the financial statements.
The group has not applied any new standard or

interpretation that is not yet effective for the current

accounting period (see note 34).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(A7 851 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

3. HEXH® 3.  TURNOVER
ARARZETBEEBAREER FAEEZ The principal activity of the company is investment
TEXEBRR RE ZERIBEH holding. The principal activities of the group are the
B & & Bi & o design, manufacture, retail and wholesale of fashion

apparel and accessories.

EXFECEEnRECFE TEER Turnover represents the invoiced value of goods sold,
B WS MBREMEZEH - excluding value added tax and net of trade discounts.
4. HWARHAMWKEFE 4. OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER NET INCOME
—EENF —EEHF
2008 2007
Fr Fr
$000 $'000
Hgl A Other revenue
RATIERZ A B A Interest income from bank deposits 1,698 2,526
RENMFHSRE Gross rental from investment properties 650 725
RS E U A Service fee income 420 420
EWHE Compensation received - 380
REIRES 2 Interest income from
FMEWA held-to-maturity securities 85 186
FETEIA Sundry income 305 436
3,158 4,673
Ht Wz #5E Other net income
BRAEFESZEEBK Net realised and unrealised gains/(losses) on
KBRS equity securities
(B#E8) F8 23 (39)
HEBEEE ZEIBFH Net loss on sale of fixed assets (419) (569)
BE 5 U st R R Net exchange gain 831 1,093
435 485
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(LA #5171 ) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

5. BRBAIER 5. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION
BREADER S MR (GEA) ¢ Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/
(crediting):
—BENF —ERLF
2008 2007
T T
$/000 $000
(@) REMRA : (a) Finance costs:
BRAFABEEE Interest on bank advances and other
ZRITERREAM borrowings wholly repayable within
BEZFE five years 266 365
b) BIMA (TEFE (b)  Staff costs (excluding directors’
E5ME (W) ¢ remuneration (note 7)):
AEMFRNRETE 2 Contribution to defined contribution
R retirement plan 3,168 2,274
e  IENEHMER Salaries, wages and other benefits 71,982 54,211
75,150 56,485
(c) HfbiER : (c) Other items:
RN & Auditors’ remuneration
— ZERTE — audit services 1,262 1,008
— HAbpR# — other services 315 _
e Depreciation 17,834 12,934
B2 RWERRZ (Reversal of)/impairment losses on
(@) / BESE trade debtors (1,000) 1,201
BEEEEZRERE Impairment losses on fixed assets 344 =
T REEY KE Operating lease charges in respect of
HEEH land and buildings
- RIEHEEAR — minimum lease payments 111,528 83,474
- $EHES — contingent rentals 8,987 8,234
EWREM*EST Rentals receivable from investment
MREERX12,0007T properties less direct
(ZZ2ZLF: outgoings of $12,000
59,0007T) (2007: $59,000) (638) (666)
FE AT Cost of inventories * (note 17(b))
(HfzE17(b)) 104,280 73,689
# TFERAH21,467,000T (ZEF 1 *  Cost of inventories includes $21,467,000 (2007: $18,005,000)
 :18,005,000T) » BIFEE T A relating to staff costs, depreciation and operating lease charges,
TERKLHEER SNBSS which amount is also included in the respective total amounts
LA L& B 5 RS M S (b)Y R disclosed separately above or in note 5(b) for each of these types
Pz HBERT o of expenses.
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6. GEBRBRRIITZIEH 6. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME
STATEMENT
(@ HEEBERATZBEES: (@  Taxation in the consolidated income statement
represents:
—EEBNE “EELHF
2008 2007
T T
$’000 $000
AEABIE - BBREH Current tax - Hong Kong Profits Tax
REERE Provision for the year 2 2,241
DiEFERETR Under-provision in respect of prior years 57 158
59 2,399
TEBIE - FE Current tax — PRC
REERME Provision for the year 9,199 7,675
ELEREH Deferred tax
TRMERECEE Origination and reversal of temporary
g differences 653 (259)
BESEHIELEHELE SR Effect of changes in tax rate on deferred
4 tax balances 132 -
785 (259)
10,043 9,815
BEEMNERDURNFE Z @ ER The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax is
BRENERE175% (ZEFLF calculated at 17.5% (2007: 17.5%) of the
17.5%) 1E H M o PEIRIBINKT B estimated assessable profits for the year. Taxation
ARZBEDZREEREAEZERE for the PRC and overseas subsidiaries is charged
BRZBATHENE - at the appropriate current rates of taxation ruling

in the relevant tax jurisdictions.
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MOISELLE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED HFEBREESFRA =

6.

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME
STATEMENT (continued)

(@)

Taxation in the consolidated income statement
represents: (continued)

On 16 March 2007, the Fifth Plenary Session of
the Tenth National People’s Congress passed the
Corporate Income Tax Law of the PRC (the “new
tax law”) which became effective on 1 January
2008. Under the new tax law, the statutory
income tax rate applicable to the PRC subsidiaries
has changed from 15% to 25% progressively
within five years from 1 January 2008 (2008: 18%;
2009: 20%; 2010: 22%; 2011: 24%; 2012: 25%).
A PRC subsidiary is entitled to income tax holiday
granted by the local tax authority whereby it is
exempted from Foreign Enterprise Income Tax
(“FEIT”) for two years starting from the first profit
making year and thereafter subject to FEIT at 50%
of the preferential tax rate for the following three
years. During the year ended 31 March 2008, the
PRC subsidiary is in the second profit making
year, therefore, it is exempted from FEIT. Under
the new tax law, the PRC subsidiary will continue

to enjoy such tax holiday until its expiry.

Furthermore, under the new tax law, a 10%
withholding tax will be levied on dividends
declared to foreign investors from the PRC,
however, only the dividends attributable to the
profits of financial periods starting from 1 January
2008 will be subject to the withholding tax. A
lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there
is a tax treaty arrangement between the PRC and
the jurisdiction of the foreign investor. Pursuant to
a double tax arrangement between the PRC and
Hong Kong, the group is subject to a withholding
tax at the rate of 5% for any dividend payments

from the group’s PRC subsidiaries.
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MOISELLE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED H&FEBREESFRA =

B 785 A

Notes to the Financial Statements

(A7 851 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

6. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME
STATEMENT (continued)

(@)

Taxation in the consolidated income statement
represents: (continued)

On 27 February 2008, the Financial Secretary of
the Hong Kong SAR Government announced his
annual budget which proposed a cut in the profits
tax rate from 17.5% to 16.5% with effect from the
fiscal year 2008-09.

The amount of deferred tax recognised as at 31
March 2008 was measured using the revised tax

rates in the corresponding tax jurisdictions.

In March 2007, the district State Tax Bureau of
Shenzhen of the PRC raised enquiries on certain
aspects of the operations of a PRC subsidiary. No
additional tax assessments have been received by
the group and the management has reviewed the
relevant tax rules and regulations and industry
practice and considers that no additional
provision is required to be made in the financial

statements.
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74

6. GEBBRRIITZAEBH (&) 6. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME
STATEMENT (continued)
(b)y BEXHESIENRERREG (b)  Reconciliation between tax expense and
B8k accounting profit at applicable tax rates:
—EEBNE “EELHF
2008 2007
Fr T
$'000 $000
BRTE A& Kl Profit before taxation 62,342 88,069
REMBERBREER Notional tax on profit before taxation,
ESRANBRASRNE calculated at the rates applicable to profits
BRBLADGRF 2 B RBIE in the tax jurisdictions concerned 13,322 13,177
AAHE Xz F g2 Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 1,179 408
BEGTHRIWA 2RSS Tax effect of non-taxable revenue (987) (579)
R B Fff /B 2 B P58 e B A Tax effect of the income tax holiday
2R 2 of a PRC subsidiary (7,791) (4,502)
AR E AT B ARFERHIE Tax effect of unused tax losses not recognised
BRHELE 3,914 1,166
REFRERBIEEE Recognition of deferred tax in respect of
2 IEFEFL IE prior year’s unrecognised tax losses - (13)
WERBBINEBINE Tax effect of unrecognised deferred tax
FREERERELRE arising from depreciation allowance
2R E less than related depreciation 217 -
RSB IR IR B 4 64 Effect on deferred tax balances resulting from
2 changes in tax rates 132 -
DAFEEREBERRE Under-provision in prior years 57 158
BERBETH Actual tax expense 10,043 9,815

MOISELLE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED HFEBREESFRA =
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(A7 851 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

DIRECTORS” REMUNERATION

Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section

MEwmT : 161 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as
follows:
i
EER
ENER BR
Salaries, STEIMR
E=#h4  allowances BEHA  Retirement
Directors’ and benefits Discretionary scheme @t
fees in kind bonuses contributions Total
Tr Tr Tr Tr Tr
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
“EENFE 2008
HITEE Executive directors
FRERZR Chan Yum Kit - 5,811 - 12 5,823
#1515 Tsui How Kiu, Shirley - 3,911 - 12 3,923
“®EE Chui Hing Yee = 1,755 60 12 1,827
R EZ Chan Sze Chun = 891 50 12 953
BUIHHITESE Independent non-executive
directors
REE Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian 48 = = = 48
RIEEE Chu Chun Kit, Sidney 48 - - - 48
BN Wong Shuk Ying, Helen 48 - - - 48
144 12,368 110 48 12,670
—EBtE 2007
HITEE Executive directors
FRERAR Chan Yum Kit - 5,528 - 12 5,540
{1515 Tsui How Kiu, Shirley - 3,578 - 12 3,590
“EE Chui Hing Yee = 1,768 60 12 1,840
RE % Chan Sze Chun = 737 50 12 799
BUIHHITESE Independent non-executive
directors
REE Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian 48 - - - 48
Rkt Chu Chun Kit, Sidney 48 - - - 48
BN Wong Shuk Ying, Helen 48 - - - 48
144 11,611 110 48 11,913
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E=ME (A&

o BETESERBREUNDEARLF
R - BEER=-"ZBNF=ZRA=+—-H%
EEERBRERERTEZBREZ
HECHRRESEREEBRETE -
g e

Fe EHREYEINECEUTERAS
2,349,000t (ZZZ £ F :2,188,0007T)
mMEZRTEZEELHREEY -

REMEAL

AMI(ZEZRLF AU HZSMEALF
My (ZZ2ZLF =W EBS2HMEER
M7 FHNE  HSmA (CTFLF

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)

In addition, certain directors were granted options to
subscribe for shares in the company. Details of the share
options granted and outstanding in respect of each
director as at 31 March 2008 are set out under the
section “Share options scheme” of the report of the

directors.

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind include
$2,349,000 (2007: $2,188,000) representing own land
and buildings provided to directors based on market

rental.

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS
Of the six (2007: five) individuals with the highest
emoluments, four (2007: three) are directors whose

emoluments are disclosed in note 7. The aggregate of the

M) AT ZBSEARENT ¢ emoluments in respect of the other two (2007: two)
individuals are as follows:

—EEN\F .
2008 2007
T T
$000 $000
HeRHEMME Salaries and other emoluments 1,512 1,438
[SRERCEAN Discretionary bonuses 297 405
RIRET SRR Retirement scheme contributions 24 24
1,833 1,867
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8. BEME AL (&) 8. INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS
(continued)
ZMU(ZEELE WU e AL The emoluments of the two (2007: two) individuals with
ZHMEETIISEER : the highest emoluments are within the following band:
A
Number of individuals
—EENE —EELF
$ 2008 2007
£ — 1,000,0007T Nil — 1,000,000 1 2
1,000,001t — 1,500,0007T 1,000,001 - 1,500,000 1 —
9. FREF 9. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR
ARERERREBEGEEABE-2E The consolidated profit attributable to equity shareholders
B B B3 R R 8 & #19,039,0007T of the company includes a profit of $19,039,000 (2007:
ZEZ L 119,749,0007T) i@ Fl $19,749,000) which has been dealt with in the financial

statements of the company.

LHBEERRREF a2 H R Reconciliation of the above amount to the company’s

profit for the year:

—EENF —EELHF
2008 2007
F5 5
$000 $7000
ENARDRAPHRRZ Amount of consolidated profit attributable to
R RRELSRES RS equity shareholders dealt with in the
company’s financial statements 19,039 19,749
BRKEBATL—BEEREZ  Final dividend from subsidiary attributable
BRI WRAEECHER  to the profits of the previous financial period,
A Z RER 2 approved and paid during the year 40,000 40,000
RRBRERN 2@ A Company’s profit for the year (note 26(b))
(HfzE26(b)) 59,039 59,749
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10. KE 10.  DIVIDENDS
(@ EAEARAEERRZAFERE (@@  Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the

company attributable to the year

—EEN\F —TELHF
2008 2007
Fr Fr
$7000 $'000
EERKRIKA PR ESR4ML  Interim dividend declared and paid
(ZZ2Z+F  8R51) of 4 cents per share
(2007: 5 cents per share) 11,281 14,098
REEHBREZRD IR Final dividend proposed after the
REZR7l balance sheet date of 7 cents
(ZZZLF : 8R121b) per share (2007: 12 cents per share) 19,742 33,844
31,023 47,942

REERREZEZDIRZRHMKRE AL
AELERBRIRAR -

The final dividend proposed after the balance
sheet date has not been recognised as a liability at

the balance sheet date.

b) ERAATERBREZE—BERE )
ERE W RAFEEHOERIRA

Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the
company attributable to the previous financial

year, approved and paid during the year

—2ENF —EELHF
2008 2007
Fr Fr
$000 $'000
BRE-BEHREE IR Final dividend in respect of the previous
RNEECHAERKMNARBRE  financial year, approved and paid
BFR1244 during the year, of 12 cents per share
(ZZZLF  8ki124b) (2007: 12 cents per share) 33,844 33,834
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(@ BREXERF
BREABFDREBEARAAE R
fE %= IR R FE 5% #152,299,0007T
(Z=Z L& :78,254,000t) &
AEEEBRTEBRZMETY
£282,030,0000 (= ZEZF £ F :
281,962,9328%) 5T &

by EBREHRA

ERBEBADRELAQ AL BE
7 PR R A5 5 F52,299,0007T (=&
T+ :78,254,000T) RFEFTE A
BEENEBR2SEFLARERE

= iR MR R 39 £0284,970,569
R (ZZFLF :284,627,074MR) &f
B ERRMNEFHEZTENT

11.

S 785 A B

Notes to the Financial Statements

(A7 851 ’R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

EARNINGS PER SHARE

(@) Basic earnings per share
The calculation of basic earnings per share is
based on the profit attributable to ordinary equity
shareholders of the company of $52,299,000
(2007: $78,254,000) and the weighted average
number of 282,030,000 (2007: 281,962,932)
ordinary shares in issue during the year.

(b)  Diluted earnings per share
The calculation of diluted earnings per share is
based on the profit attributable to ordinary equity
shareholders of the company of $52,299,000
(2007: $78,254,000) and the weighted average
number of 284,970,569 (2007: 284,627,074)
ordinary shares after adjusting for the effects of all
dilutive potential ordinary shares, calculated as

follows:
EBERZINE-FE (45F) Weighted average number of ordinary shares
(diluted)
—EENE —EELE
2008 2007
RGHEE R EE
Number of Number of
shares shares
M=B=+—HE®&KR=  Weighted average number of
InEF 9% ordinary shares at 31 March 282,030,000 281,962,932
WRARBRRT 2 Effect of deemed issue of ordinary shares
BB BT EHER under the company’s share option
BOZBR2EE scheme for nil consideration 2,940,569 2,664,142
R=ZA=+—HZER=2  Weighted average number of ordinary
IEFEE (E5E) shares (diluted) at 31 March 284,970,569 284,627,074

12. D HIKE
DPHERRRAEE 2 hE D ZEH 2 -
EREMEIF2ER I REBEERGASEH
EEERNARAGAMBEZEFEH S

G ©

MOISELLE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED H&FEBREESFRA =

12

SEGMENT REPORTING

Segment information is presented in respect of the
group’s geographical segments. Information relating to
geographical segments based on the location of
customers is chosen because this is in line with the
group’s management information reporting system.
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12. 7R E (A7) 12.  SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)
BERBIZOBNEBEULRFPE 8 E2RE Segment outside Hong Kong represents sales to customers
FMEFZHE located in the PRC, Taiwan and Macau.

HAAREERE -—TEBD XKD BRHEE No business segment analysis of the group is presented
B REFRECER AUt EEFIAREE 2 because sales of fashion apparel and accessories is the
KB DB DA o only distinguishable business segment of the group.
& 2 &P Geographical segments
REBBEEUTEIEHRED B : The group comprises the following main geographical
segments:
&k 5 AIE CE)
Hong Kong Outside Hong Kong Unallocated Consolidated
“RRNE CRRLE CRI\F CERLE CRRNF CIRCE CERN\E CRRLE
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
n o o T o S o o
$'000 $'000 $000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $000 $'000
RENREFZUA Revenue from external
customers 232,998 208,078 182,466 144,139 - - 45464 352217
REPREF 2 EHUA Other revenue from
external customers - - - - 650 725 050 725
a5 Total 232,998 208078 182,466 144,139 650 725 416114 352,942
PTHEERE Segment result 19,553 46,693 34,813 33,608 54,366 80,301
AIBEEURRER Unallocated operating income
and expenses 3,593 5,158
HE e Profit from operations 57959 85459
RERAK Finance costs (266) (365)
HBREEMR Net valuation gains on land
RENzfhE and buildings and
s investment properties 4649 2,975
FrEH Income tax (10,043 (9,815
ERgH Profit for the year 52,299 78,254
REENE Depreciation for the year 7,554 5,888 10,280 7,046 17,834 12,934
THEE (BR) /HEFE:  (Reversal of/impairment losses on
- Bl - trade receivables - = (1,000) 1,201 (1,000) 1,201
-BE4E - fixed assets 344 - - - 344 -
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12. DR|E (&) 12.  SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)
20 ) &
Hong Kong Outside Hong Kong Consolidated
“EENF —TRLF FINF SFRLEF RR\F FELF
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
R T T S T o
$000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $000 $'000
PHEE Segment assets 225,753 169,185 162,992 117,539 388,745 286,724
RABEE Unallocated assets 105,735 121,307
BEAE Total assets 494,480 408,031
AHEE Segment liabilities 34,603 28,826 25,606 14,238 60,209 43,064
AOEEE Unallocated liabilities 25,189 13,413
Ut Total liabilities 85,398 56,477
KEERELEZ Capital expenditure
BREZ incurred during the year 10,892 15,136 13,186 17,141
BEBEI N Additional information concerning
BINER geographical segments:
REEMELED Segment assets by the
LODERE location of assets 235,613 176,811 153,132 109,913

REEREREDL 2 Capital expenditure

AEEREE incurred during the
BAREX year by the location
of assets 10,718 11,354 13,360 20,923
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13. BEEE&EE 13.  FIXED ASSETS

@ F& (@)  The group

Gl B

8 EKK

BOZEE

NATER RAE

BEBRZ Furniture,

THREEY fixtures,

landand ~ IXHE  computer
buildings R#H  andoffice  RENE

held for own Plant  equipment 4 RENE
use carried and  and motor  Leasehold Mt Investment a5
at fair value  machinery vehicles improvements  Sub-total properties Total
T r r T r r r
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
RATEE Cost or valuation:
RZBEXENA-H At 1 April 2006 102,400 4,886 18,190 25,941 151,417 14,100 165,517
ERAZ Exchange adjustments - 122 138 520 780 - 780
HE Additions 12,679 370 3,799 9,620 26,468 5,809 32,277
HeE Disposals - (150) (1,113) (2,681) (4,144) - (4,144)
ENPE Reclassification 5,809 - - = 5,809 (5,809) =
EiEH Surplus on revaluation 24,793 = = = 24,793 = 24,793
i BSHTEHH Less: elimination of
accumulated
depreciation (2,561) - - - (2,561) - (2,561)
AYERE Fair value adjustment - - - - - 3,030 3,030
RZIBEtE=A=1-H At 31 March 2007 143,120 5,228 21,014 33,200 202,562 17,130 219,692
RE: Representing:
B Cost - 5,228 21,014 33,200 59,442 - 59,442
HE-—E5tE Valuation - 2007 143,120 - - - 143,120 17,130 160,250
143,120 5,228 21,014 33,200 202,562 17,130 219,692
R=22tENA-A At 1 April 2007 143,120 5,28 21,014 33,200 202,562 17130 219,692
ERAZ Exchange adjustments 3,568 322 399 1,815 6,104 = 6,104
#BE Additions - 341 3,330 20,407 24,078 - 24,078
HeE Disposals - - (5,165) (18,989) (24,154) - (24,154)
BEHNE Reclassification 3,600 - - - 3,600 (3,600) -
BB Surplus on revaluation 52,076 = = = 52,076 = 52,076
W BSHTEHE Less: elimination of
accumulated
depreciation (3,444) - - - (3,444) - (3,444)
NERR Fair value adjustment - - - - - 2,490 2,490
RZBENE=R=t-H At 31 March 2008 198,920 5,891 19,578 36,433 260,822 16,020 276,842
& Representing;
BA Cost - 5,891 19,578 36,433 61,902 - 61,902
HE-—BENE Valuation - 2008 198,920 - - - 198,920 16,020 214,940
198,920 5,891 19,578 36,433 260,822 16,020 276,842
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13. BEEE&EE (&) 13.  FIXED ASSETS (continued)
(@) AEE (F) (a) The group (continued)
& BE
28 EER
BAEEE
NATEFIE RAE
BEBAZ Furniture,
THREEN fixtures,
landand ~ IXHE  computer

buildings R#H  andoffice  HEWE

held for own Plant  equipment % REmx
use carried and  andmotor  Leasehold gt Investment @t
at fair value  machinery vehicles improvements  Sub-total properties Total
Tr Tr T Tr Tr Tr Tr
$'000 §'000 $'000 $'000 §'000 $'000 $'000
EAR: Aggregate depreciation:
RZEEAEMA-A At 1 April 2006 - 2,125 12,046 15,702 29,873 - 29,873
EjiE Exchange adjustments - 21 38 203 262 - 262
rEERE Charge for the year 2,561 261 2377 7,735 12,934 - 12,934
HERERE Written back on
disposals - (52) (1,031) (2,197) (3,280) - (3,280)
EftRHE Elimination on
revaluation (2,561) - = - (2,561) - (2,561)
RZZEtE=B=+-H  At31 March 2007 - 2,355 13,430 21,443 37,028 - 37,28
R=EZtEMA-A At 1 April 2007 - 2,355 13,430 21,443 37,228 - 37,228
X% Exchange adjustments - 7 153 1,116 1,341 - 1,341
KEEHE Charge for the year 3,444 321 2,859 11,210 17,834 = 17,834
HEFE Impairment losses - - - 344 344 _ 344
HERER Written back on
disposals - - (4,924) (18,468) (23,392) - (23,392)
BERHE Elimination on
revaluation (3,444) - - - (3,444) - (3,444)
RZEEN\E=F=1-H At 31 March 2008 - 2,748 11,518 15,045 29911 - 29,911
REFE Net book value:
RZEEN\E=F=1-H At 31 March 2008 198,920 3,143 8,060 20,788 230,911 16,020 246,931
WIEEtE=B=1-H At 31 March 2007 143,120 2,873 7,584 11,757 165,334 17,130 162,464

MOISELLE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED H&FEBREESFRA =

ANNUAL REPORT 2008 448k



MOISELLE

84

S 785 A

Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA #5177 ) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

13. BE&E (&)
(b)y BEEBR
R-ZZNE . —HEEEHES
MEEE2REESHAETT
DREBEEEBHZASEEZ AT
W EHRIETE o

(c) RZZEZENF=A=+—H8 K&
BzREVEULSZHRERTKRA
BAEHZFHSRAEETEZ
AFEMEREEETEM - HEHR
BIYGEARBERITERDA (K
BEBREAINENMEEEEZE
TSI 35 v A BT ik (B 9 36 3t B K 38 A
BBIL 2 &8R) ET o

(d) R-ZEBENF=A=+—H K&
EEEERAz L REZEYET
B EMUEELBELESZME
EMEESCALHEERSBEHZ
AFEMEREE - HESIHBER
TERAR (BRENAFMEEYE
i B BB B 2 AR BR) AT o
BZEZE-ZZ N\F=A=+—-H1
FE REMBEREES52,076,000
T (=ZZFZ L F :24,793,0007T)
i+ 49,917,000t (ZEZ2 L F .
24,848,0007T ) &1 BRIE ZE FT 15 5 &
(M sE24(b)) BRZEMEFEE (W
26(a)) @ T & #2,159,000T (==
T & FA55,0007T) ERGRER
mIRETA ©

fid tMBEEEBRA 2L EEEY
EERARBBTTESER R=
EENF=ZA=+t—-HZzKREE
# %82,879,000t(Z B F £ & :
81,515,0007T) °
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13.

FIXED ASSETS (continued)

(b)

(c)

(d

Impairment losses

In 2008, the carrying amount of the leasehold
improvements of a retail shop was written down
to $Nil which is based on the management’s
estimation of the recoverable amount of these

assets.

The group’s investment properties were revalued
as at 31 March 2008 on an open market value
basis calculated by reference to net rental income
allowing for reversionary income potential. The
valuations were carried out by an independent
firm of surveyors, DTZ Debenham Tie Leung
Limited, who have among their staff members of
the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors with recent
experience in the location and category of

property being valued.

The group’s land and buildings held for own use
were revalued at 31 March 2008 at their open
market values by direct comparison approach by
making reference to comparable sale transactions
as available in the relevant market. The valuations
were also carried out by DTZ Debenham Tie
Leung Limited who has recent experience in the
location and category of property being valued.
Out of the total revaluation surplus of
$52,076,000 (2007: $24,793,000), $49,917,000
(2007: $24,848,000) has been transferred to the
revaluation reserve (note 26(a)), net of deferred
tax (note 24(b)) and a surplus of $2,159,000 has
been credited (2007: deficit of $55,000) to the
consolidated income statement for the year ended
31 March 2008.

Had the above land and buildings held for own
use been carried at cost less accumulated
depreciation, the carrying amounts would have
been $82,879,000 (2007: $81,515,000) at 31
March 2008.
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13. BE&E (&) 13.  FIXED ASSETS (continued)
() WMEZREFREINNOT : (e)  The analysis of net book value of properties is as
follows:
EE
The group
—EEN\F —TELHF
2008 2007
T T
$000 $'000
REHE In Hong Kong
-REHEE — Long leases 54,340 49,970
—HEHEE — Medium-term leases 114,400 72,300
—EHEE — Short leases 2,500 2,300
BBIRIN Outside Hong Kong
- RHAAE — Long leases 6,600 4,400
—FHEEE — Medium-term leases 37,100 31,280
214,940 160,250
() BRELLEHEHECEEEE () Fixed assets leased out under operating leases
FIERBREHEFEIFTERE All properties held under operating leases that
MEEE2MEREAREYE - would otherwise meet the definition of investment

property are classified as investment property.

AEFRKLLHEHSHHBREYE - The group leases out investment properties under
HEHE-RITHBB-—FE2=F operating leases. The leases typically run for an
TORNmEENEEMERARE initial period of one to three years, with an option
H-HENREBESZEFTRHE to renew the lease after that date at which time all
IRMmEES ZFEHKLEHEEY terms are renegotiated. Lease payments are
rEEREHRSE - usually adjusted annually to reflect market rentals.

None of the leases includes contingent rentals.
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13. BE&E#) 13.  FIXED ASSETS (continued)
(f) RESEHAEHAZEEEE (&) () Fixed assets leased out under operating leases
(continued)

FEERTUTHRGRNEEREER
REWNREEENRBENT :

The group’s total future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases are

receivable as follows:

—EENE “EELHF
2008 2007
Fr Fr
$7000 $7000
—F R Within 1 year 550 577
—FEREHEFR After 1 year but within 5 years - 550
550 1,127
® 7N £ [ BR @ {83,600,0007T (= B2 (g) A property of the group with a carrying amount of

$3,600,000 (2007: $2,400,000) is pledged to

secure banking facilities granted to the group.

+ 4 :2,400,0007T) 2 E B K H
EAAREEERBITRE ZER -

14. YNGR £ 14. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES
—EEN\F —TELHF
2008 2007
T Fr
$000 $7000
F LR - AR E Unlisted shares, at cost 61,672 61,672
JE WL B A R FRIE Amounts due from subsidiaries 111,080 76,986
172,752 138,658

BHHBARRESERT 2ERER
EERH HAPFEREEBR-—FR
g o expected to be recovered within one year of the balance

Amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest
free and have no fixed terms of repayment but are not

sheet date.

LTEAHAKEXE EEIRERE
FECWBARZFHE - KREBEHN
FEEzZRHHEABEBR -

The following list contains only the particulars of
subsidiaries which principally affected the results, assets
or liabilities of the group. The class of shares held is
ordinary unless otherwise stated.
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14. RHEBRB &R (&) 14.
ZEZETINE AR RME (R REZ
WE - WERARE M BRRESEHE -

INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
All of these are controlled subsidiaries as defined under
note 1(c) and have been consolidated into the group

financial statements.

MOISELLE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED H&FEBREESFRA =

ERTRHME
A,
BXzHE
Particulars
SE AL L of issued and =)
T 4% 1t B fully paid-up FEz bl
Place of share/ Proportion FTEXK
NG incorporation registered of ownership Principal
Name of company and operation capital interest activity
EERH
Directly held
Moiselle (BVI) Limited" KBAEMRES 2,000% 7T 100% REZR
British Virgin US$2,000 Investment
Islands holding
e
Indirectly held
Always Profit Holdings AEGERRES ESH 100% REEZER
Limited” British Virgin US$1 Investment
Islands holding
BERRAH 0 1007T 100% By 128 AR 80 %
Beautirich Limited Hong Kong $100 [
Trading of

fashion apparel

and accessories
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14. RHEATIZ2#ER (&) 14. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
ERTRHAE
BAER
BFXzwHE
Particulars
SEM AL L of issued and =)
T 4R 1t B fully paid-up s bkl
Place of share/ Proportion FTEXK
IR incorporation registered of ownership Principal
Name of company and operation capital interest activity
MEEH (&)
Indirectly held (continued)
BHERRBEARAF BB AT e 100% MEHEREE R
Boo Gie Garment Factory Hong Kong 200,0007T E3S2C)
Limited ZER Sourcing of
1,800,0017T materials and
Deferred property holding
non-voting
$200,000
Ordinary
$1,800,001
BHEEARLA 58 27T 100% REEZER
Boogie Holdings Limited Hong Kong $2 Investment
holding
BEEBBRAH BB 47T 100% B 1o P B9 %
Bright Star (HK) Limited Hong Kong $4 (=07
Trading of
fashion apparel
and accessories
HEERARAT BB 27T 100% REEZR
Busy Win International Hong Kong $2 Investment
Limited holding
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14. RHEBAR 2R (&) 14. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
ERTRHME
WA,
BFXzHE
Particulars
AL L of issued and =% )
T 4R 1t Bh fully paid-up FEz bl
Place of share/ Proportion FTEXK
NGRS incorporation registered of ownership Principal
Name of company and operation capital interest activity
BiERHE (F)
Indirectly held (continued)
REEHERDF BB 1,0007T 100% REZR
Eastasia Plaza Limited Hong Kong $1,000 Investment
holding
Euro Legend Assets REBERRES %53 100% REEZR
Limited * British Virgin US$1 Investment
Islands holding
SRR B RO F BB 10,0007T 100% TER & IR A
Grand Bridge Hong Kong $10,000 SqT:]
International Limited Retail of fashion
apparel and
accessories
NRRERBROF BB 27T 100% REZKR
iMaroon International Hong Kong $2 Investment
Company Limited holding
WBRERRDF BB 10,0007T 100% ESSE]
Landwin Investments Limited Hong Kong $10,000 Property
holding
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14. RHEBAR 2= (&) 14. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
ERTRHAE
B EE
B2
Particulars
SEM AL L of issued and =)
T 4R 1t B fully paid-up s bkl
Place of share/ Proportion FTEXK
IR incorporation registered of ownership Principal
Name of company and operation capital interest activity
MEEH (&)

Indirectly held (continued)

RE@EBBERAF &R 500,0007T 100% TE IR
Moiselle (Hong Kong) Hong Kong $500,000 X Eeeh
Limited Retail of fashion
apparel and

accessories

REEBERQA 58 27T 100% REEZR
Moiselle International Hong Kong $2 Investment
Limited holding
REBRAT KBRS 1X7% 100% ZER I RE
Onexcel Limited® British Virgin US$1 ST ]
Islands Retail of fashion

apparel and

accessories

BERREERAA BE 500,0007T 100% SER IR
Pearl Jade Investments Hong Kong $500,000 R B &
Limited Retail of fashion
apparel and

accessories
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14. RHEBAR 2R (&) 14. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
ERTRHME
WA,
BFXzHE
Particulars
AL L of issued and =% )
T 4R 1t Bh fully paid-up FEz bl
Place of share/ Proportion FTEXK
NGRS incorporation registered of ownership Principal
Name of company and operation capital interest activity
MEEH (&)
Indirectly held (continued)
BREBEREROF BiE 4,0007T 100% TER & IR A
Perfect National Hong Kong $4,000 K Ei
International Limited Retail of fashion
apparel and
accessories
HEERAE KEERRRS %7 100% RERR
Profair Limited® British Virgin US$1 Investment
Islands holding
HREEREROF B8 27T 100% T IR A
Regal Dragon Hong Kong $2 SqT:]
Development Limited Retail of fashion
apparel and
accessories
ERRERRDF B8 1,0007T 100% ESEEC]
Shirley Investments Hong Kong $1,000 Property
Limited holding
BERERRQF 58 47T 100% REZER
Sky Well Investment Hong Kong $4 Investment
Limited holding
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14. RHEBAR 2= (&) 14. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
ERTRHAE
BAER
BFXzwHE
Particulars
SEM AL L of issued and =)
T 4R 1t B fully paid-up s bkl
Place of share/ Proportion FTEXK
IR incorporation registered of ownership Principal
Name of company and operation capital interest activity
MEEH (&)
Indirectly held (continued)
ERARAR" KBRS 10,0005 7T 100% REER
Sosuccess Limited® British Virgin US$10,000 Investment
Islands holding
REEBARA A’ REEMRES 1X7T 100% REZR
Timepro International British Virgin US$1 Investment
Limited” Islands holding
BERHFEERAF’ A AMER 100% TER i AR
Treasure Light Fashion Macau 25,0002F5 5t K Ei g
Limited® Registered Retail of
capital of fashion apparel
MOP25,000 and accessories
RHARERRLDF 58 27T 100% REEZER
United Sino Investment Hong Kong $2 Investment
Limited holding
REZIMERDF BB 500,0007T 100% B 141 PR 815 %
Viewgood Overseas Hong Kong $500,000 e E 5
Limited Trading of

MOISELLE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED H&FEBREESFRD =

fashion apparel

and accessories
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14. RMEBAR 2R (F) 14.  INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
ERTRHME
R
BEFxzFHE
Particulars
B 3L of issued and ¥E
T 4R 1t Bh fully paid-up FEz bl
Place of share/ Proportion FTEXK
NGRS incorporation registered of ownership Principal
Name of company and operation capital interest activity
MERE (&)
Indirectly held (continued)
ZRERRINVERDF" FE AMEAR 100% REHIK
Ming Fung Garment Manufacturing PRC 2,100,0007c Manufacturing
(Shenzhen) Company Registered of garments
Limited * capital of
$2,100,000
WERERINERAR FE AMEAR 100% BRI
Yubao Fashionable Dress PRC 8,400,0007% Manufacturing
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.” Registered of garments
capital of
$8,400,000
FYESREMBERAT e HEMER 100% #E 3 B 1
Shenzhen Baozhuo PRC AR#500,0007T B & K B &
Fashion Wholesale Registered Wholesale of
Co., Ltd.” capital of fashion apparel
RMB500,000 and accessories
FYEESETERRAR e HEMER 100% SER M IRE
Shen Zhen Graceful Fashion PRC  AK®2,000,0007T &g
Retail Limited Company” Registered Retail of
capital of fashion apparel

RMB2,000,000 and accessories

* BIEFESEPIEM Z BB E B - *  These are wholly-owned foreign investment enterprises registered
under the laws of the PRC.
WHESRE T EHTETEZ : Companies not audited by KPMG.
ZAE e
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15. HMEE 15. OTHER ASSETS
HihEEaEHEES AEREREMIZRS Included in other assets are rental, utility and other
20,519,000t (=ZZEZ £ F 13,227,000 deposits of $20,519,000 (2007: $13,227,000), which are
) HHAREE R —FRKE - expected to be recovered after one year from the balance
sheet date.
16. EHit&mEE 16. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
FEEREQF
The group and the company
—EEBNE “EELHF
2008 2007
Fr T
$'000 $000
REBLM 2RAES Equity securities listed in Hong Kong
BAF¥E at fair value 490 469
FEIMF LHER Unlisted held-to-maturity debt
&5 securities - 3,890
490 4,359
17. ®#& 17.  INVENTORIES
(@ REEEGERZFEERE: (@)  Inventories in the balance sheet comprise:
TEH
The group
—BENF —EEHF
2008 2007
Fr Fr
$’000 $000
FER R Raw materials 11,506 10,266
E&m Work in progress 1,235 3,656
SRR Finished goods 71,635 55,695
84,376 69,617
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17. 7FE(#E) 17.  INVENTORIES (continued)
(b) BRARIZFESEZI MW @ (b)  The analysis of the amount of inventories
recognised as an expense is as follows:
AR
The group
—EENE “EELF
2008 2007
Fr T
$'000 $'000
EERMAE Carrying amount of inventories sold 94,798 70,722
WEHEE Write down of inventories 9,482 2,967
104,280 73,689
18. FEUWARF R H f B YR 18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
rEE RAF]
The group The company
—REN\F —FTTLF —BIN\F —FTLH
2008 2007 2008 2007
7 Fi Fr Fr
$’000 $000 $’000 $/000
= ZEWERRR Trade debtors 38,835 29,467 - =
o REREE Less: allowance for doubtful
(H1zF18(c)) debts (note 18(c)) (468) (1,451) - —
38,367 28,016 - -
FEWHBATIIIE  Amounts due from subsidiaries - - - 20,356
%% JBHNFER  Deposits, prepayments and
H th FE UL R other receivables 17,731 13,904 109 109
56,098 41,920 109 20,465
FT 7B FE UK BR 3R 2 EL th FE U 3% (B2 35 FE U FfT /BB All of the trade and other receivables (including amounts
PEAIZHB)FERER —FRAKRERERS due from subsidiaries) are expected to be recovered or
R e recognised as expenses within one year.
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18. FEWEFREMEWT (&) 18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)
(a) EBUHMBARREAZRER £ (@  Amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured,
RANEREHEEE - interest free and repayable on demand.
(b) IREDH (b)  Ageing analysis
FEREMREMERRBEBIEE S E Included in trade and other receivables are trade
WERF (IR AR EREBE) REE R 2 debtors (net of allowance for doubtful debts) with
IR DT ¢ the following ageing analysis as of the balance
sheet date:
rEH
The group
—BEBN\F —ERLF
2008 2007
T T
$000 $000
REBHREZRE ¢ Outstanding balances aged:
30HA Within 30 days 11,672 11,185
31HZE90H Between 31 to 90 days 15,108 10,039
91HZ180H Between 91 to 180 days 9,213 2,826
181HZE365H Between 181 to 365 days 2,157 2,013
#iB365H Over 365 days 217 1,953
38,367 28,016

BZEUIRREBRBHENE Trade debtors are due within 30 to 90 days from
WREH AEERFERKZE— the date of billing. Further details on the group’s
SHBRNRKT27@) °

credit policy are set out in note 27(a).
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18. MEUWERM K H At WK (A7)
(0 EBZEURMRZREME
B 5 RWIRR 2 BERENRER
BR# RIELAEECEHREER
MIEMAREERR ZEBRT -
BEEEEEEE S R W AR
(RHET(h)(i) °

RERBBERFAZEDH (BERSE
REBEEBI)MT

5 75 A

Notes to the Financial Statements

(A7 851 ’R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

(c)

Impairment of trade debtors

Impairment losses in respect of trade debtors are
recorded using an allowance account unless the
group is satisfied that recovery of the amount is
remote, in which case the impairment loss is
written off against trade debtors directly (see note

1(h)(D)).

The movements in the allowance for doubtful
debts during the year, including both specific and

collective loss components, are as follows:

KEH

The group
—EEBNE —EELHF
2008 2007
T T
$’000 $000
REA—H At 1 April 1,451 250
EREE Exchange difference 17 =
BRREEE Impairment losses recognised - 1,201
REEEEE Reversal of impairment losses (1,000) =
R=A=+—H At 31 March 468 1,451

R-ZEENE=A=1+—H 4%
BzEZEWERML737,000T (=
ZTZE+F :5,767,0005t) E 18 Bl #&
E AR E o {8 Bl R B & Uk Bk 5k 5 B
BRMBRESFERE MEEE
A ETREIPMGRE - F
It ERFZBRIREERHE468,0007T
(ZZZE L F :1,451,0007T) ° K&
B ERZEERITEEAEER °

MOISELLE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED H&FEBREESFRA =

At 31 March 2008, the group’s trade debtors of
$737,000 (2007: $5,767,000) were individually
determined to be impaired. The individually
impaired receivables relate to customers that were
in financial difficulties and management assessed
that only a portion of the receivables is expected
to be recovered. Consequently, specific
allowances for doubtful debts of $468,000 (2007:
$1,451,000) were recognised. The group does not

hold any collateral over these balances.
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18. FBWEFREMEIWT () 18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)
(d YEEBEZEZERER (d)  Trade debtors that are not impaired
TEENSEEEEEREZE S The ageing analysis of trade debtors that are
FEWERR ZIRE D MTANT ¢ neither individually nor collectively considered to

be impaired are as follows:

rEE
The group
—EEN\F =TELHF
2008 2007
Fr Fr
$000 $’000
b 48 380 B o Rl (2 Neither past due nor impaired 11,620 10,926
BHTE30H Less than 30 days past due 7,603 7,263
BHI31HZE90H 31 to 90 days past due 12,630 4,185
BHEA91HZE180H 91 to 180 days past due 5,404 1,012
BHA181 HZE365H 181 to 365 days past due 841 309
BHAEE365 B More than 365 days past due - 5
26,478 12,774
38,098 23,700
4758 5 5L (B 2 B W R R 12 05 Receivables that were neither past due nor
R L RBHREZEAES impaired relate to a wide range of customers for

whom there was no recent history of default.

BB R E 2 B R T — Receivables that were past due but not impaired
HEARBERH RS CHZEL relate to a number of independent customers that
EFRH -BARFREEZIREX have a good track record with the group. Based
BBRERDARRRAUTZHR on past experience, management believes that no
B REBTER EEEARFY impairment allowance is necessary in respect of
MOBRZSHERELRERR - these balances as there has not been a significant
AREL M A GRS R IR change in credit quality and the balances are still
o e considered fully recoverable. The group does not

hold any collateral over these balances.
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19. HERAESZEEY 19. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
rEE P N/NE|
The group The company
—EEN\F —TTLF ZTEN\F —TTLRF
2008 2007 2008 2007
T T T T
$/000 $000 $’000 $/000
RITIER Deposits with banks
—FHAE=MA - Within three months to
A 2|5 maturity when placed 29,778 43,173 - =
—FHA#E=MA - More than three months to
R EIH maturity when placed 3,333 = - _
RITERRES Cash at bank and in hand 48,468 47,133 9,686 5,409

REERBERZE|E Cash and cash equivalents
LESZEY in the balance sheet 81,579 90,306 9,686 5,409

W FHBER=EA Less: Deposits with bank with

BEHZ more than three
RITHFM months to maturity
when placed (3,333) =
$R1T3EX (Bf7£21) Bank overdrafts (note 21) (1,499) _

REABEERER  Cash and cash equivalents
ZEERBEE in the consolidated cash
BY) flow statement 76,747 90,306
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20. ENERIFREMESR 20. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
REMARN R R EMEN R AN — All of the trade and other payables are expected to be
FREE - settled within one year.
ENRARAMENREEE S ENRXR Included in trade and other payables are trade creditors
REEBZERESTNT ¢ with the following ageing analysis as of the balance sheet
date:
rEE
The group
—EEN\F —TELHF
2008 2007
T Fr
$’000 $000
AMEBRBEZRR Outstanding balances aged:
30BR Within 30 days 7,128 5,606
31HZE90H Between 31 to 90 days 2,350 1,544
#iB90H Over 90 days 760 1,111
10,238 8,261
21. BEEX 21.  BANK OVERDRAFTS
R-ZEZBENF=A=+—H ETZ2EMH At 31 March 2008, certain wholly-owned subsidiaries’
BABZHRITHMEDAARAFEMZ AT banking facilities were secured by corporate guarantees
TR R =S4 &E B IR EE3,600,0007T (= provided by the company and/or by a legal charge on a
EE L E 2,400,0007T) 2 Y ¥ 2 EE W property of the group with a carrying amount of
REAEIR T o $3,600,000 (2007: $2,400,000).
ZERTRE N H86,750,000T (ZEF Such banking facilities, amounting to approximately
+ % :90,250,0007T) c R=ZFEZENFE=H $86,750,000 (2007: $90,250,000) were utilised to the
=+ — BB FAY4763,000T (ZEEZt extent of approximately $4,763,000 (2007: $1,500,000)
£ :1,500,0007T) ° at 31 March 2008.
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22. EEEAKER
(@ AEEREFBCEFMELAESETE
R BN EB(EBIRG) EEEH
BERERAZEEHTEFIELAES
FE((RESFE] - RESE
EHEBUSTAEE 2R EMAE
et 8l - REFEaBELHE EER
EEREBZEEBBEBA Z5%0 %
EMR ESABEBRALRA
20,0007 ° BIE B 5 Bl =z KT Al

5% 8 o

(b)) FEZHBLRC2SREMHMEBA
EEzRAEMREE - LEHE L
AARTEREREFEZETE
RE bt 2= 6 2z 5T &I K o KT BN B
BB

(0 REBEEXBZMWEBLARAZES
EEEZENYL TRASKEHESE
ZREMRAE -MELRRES
HAEMKRFEAZEERAFEAR
B 26%MR  AIFHRNE TRIER
ZEARKERSE RN - REMRKF
B HRRNELERFTABRERA

EiE S ANEE I EAEMER
g

53
BERABRNRZEMEREE -

MOISELLE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED H&FEBREESFRA =

B 785 A

Notes to the Financial Statements

(A7 851 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

22. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

(@)

(b)

(c)

The group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund
scheme (the “MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
employees employed under the jurisdiction of the
Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF
scheme is a defined contribution retirement
scheme administered by independent trustees.
Under the MPF scheme, the employer and its
employees are each required to make
contributions to the scheme at 5% of the
employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of
monthly relevant income of $20,000.
Contributions to the MPF scheme vest

immediately.

The subsidiaries in the PRC participate in a
defined contribution scheme organised by the
local government. These subsidiaries are required
to make contributions at certain prescribed rates
of the relevant PRC employees’ salaries to the
scheme. Contributions to the scheme vest

immediately.

Employees of the subsidiary carrying on business
in Taiwan have chosen to participate in a defined
contribution scheme governed by the Labour
Pension Act. The subsidiary contributes at 6% of
the total salaries of participating employees that
choose to participate in the defined contribution
scheme, deposited into individual pension
accounts at the Bureau of Labour Insurance.
Contributions to the defined contribution scheme

are charged to profit or loss when incurred.
Save as set out above, the group has no other

material obligations to make payments in respect

of retirement benefits of the employees.
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23.

UBRATANRZBRODERRS
RARAR-EE-F-—B-+HHRM—
ERERESE([ZAE])  BEAQFTR
HERETHREEZ28E FAREY
AEBFEHEMcBBRREE - 28 B
RMBHBEER YR TFRAFTR -

RIEZTE ARRAESRRETHIER
FEAAQAREEAMBELR 2 2BES -
THAEHSRBE (BREES) NEMH
HREBEHAEBEMERM2EER &8
B KEE R EREREERELRER
NRAESEMEETHE 2R QAHKRMD °
RERABRER > ARAEBD AR TN
T.OOTERERBREZRE -

BREZ2OTEEAROZEE REHE
ARORBXA B mENREREAH
AMAERS ARG NERRZ2FHRHE
(ABESERE) -

BRENRTEANLEAFE2HEHH -
MBRETREHBRESHESAZE
REFBEAANG ZHRATE MHEZHR
TEEBEBEREREABESTF -8
NRRESGTHEEAEFURE -R
BRAD ©

23.

MOISELLE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED HFEBREESFRA =

EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS

The company has a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
which was adopted on 25 January 2002 to enable the
company to grant options to selected participants as
incentives and rewards for their contribution to the
group. The Scheme shall be valid and effective for a

period of ten years from the date of its adoption.

Under the Scheme, the directors of the company are
authorised, at their discretion, to offer full-time
employees, executives or officers, including the directors
of the company or any of its subsidiaries or any suppliers,
consultants, agents and advisers who will or have
contributed to the group, options to subscribe for such
number of new shares of the company as the board of
directors of the company may determine. Upon
acceptance of the option, the grantee shall pay $1.00 to

the company by way of consideration for the grant.

The exercise price of options is the highest of the
nominal value of the shares, the closing price of the
shares on the Stock Exchange on the date of grant and
the average closing price of the shares on the Stock
Exchange for the five trading days immediately preceding

the date of grant.

There is no minimum period for which an option must be
held before it can be exercised and the options are
exercisable for a period to be notified by the directors to
each option-holder upon the grant of option, such period
not to exceed ten years commencing on the date on
which the option is granted. Each option gives the holder

the right to subscribe for one share.
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UBRADTANRZROERRZ (&)

(@)

(b)

(c)

(d)

B 785 A

Notes to the Financial Statements

(A7 851 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

23. EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

BRESE (@  Movements in share options
—BENF “EEHF
2008 2007
#E A
Number Number
REA—AH At 1 April 5,920,000 6,000,000
2iTE Exercised - (80,000)
R=B=+-RH At 31 March 5,920,000 5,920,000
REA=t+—HRBZBERE Options vested at 31 March 5,920,000 5,920,000
FRAEFEZBEREZHGRRELS (b)  The terms and conditions of the share options
mE that existed during the year are as follows:
—EENE —EEHF
2008 2007
B B8 TREHE TEE #E #AE
Date of grant Exercisable period Exercise price Number Number
i —EE-FMA=T=A 1155
mA=H E-Z-"FNA—H
2 April 2002 23 April 2002 to 1 April 2012 $1.15 5,900,000 5,900,000
—EECE —EZ=FA=H 1.157C
mA=H E-Z-"FNA—H
2 April 2002 2 April 2003 to 1 April 2012 $1.15 20,000 100,000
5,920,000 6,000,000

BE-—ZEENF=A=+—HLE
[ 3 8 4% HH {F ] B A% AR o B AR A K
2 o

HRAREERA(E B BRELER)
B2RURDAER 2 F 2B
BEMGRX  AEBLERFER=
ZEE_F+-AARBZZEER
EEIAEMEX -

(c) No share options were granted or lapsed during
the year ended 31 March 2008.

(d)  The group has not recognised any expenses in
respect of these share options, which were all
granted prior to November 2002, as it took
advantage of the transitional provisions set out in
HKFRS 2, Share-based payment.
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24. EBEEESEBRATZHAESR 24.  INCOME TAX IN THE BALANCE SHEET
(@) EEEBERMTIZAHHREBEEE ! (a) Current taxation in the balance sheet represents:
A%E
The group
—EENE —EELHF
2008 2007
Fr FT
$7000 $'000

REEEBANESHEE Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax

for the year 2 2,241
BT EHFER Provisional Profits Tax paid (132) (1,340)
(130) 901
EBTFERREZFIEH Balance of Profits Tax recoverable
A EEER relating to prior years (1,127) (1,127)
BBENIIE Taxation outside Hong Kong 4,483 3,977
3,226 3,751
(V. Representing:
] B E L IE Tax recoverable (1,260) (1,695)
FE{FF 18 Tax payable 4,486 5,446
3,226 3,751
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24. INCOME TAX IN THE BALANCE SHEET (continued)

ERRABELEFSHREERER : (b)  Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised:
KE The group

REFEEGEEEABRER
EEFRBH (BE) /BE2ARE

The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities

recognised in the consolidated balance sheet and

PREBEZEFHMT : the movements during the year are as follows:
SR
HERE
REAHE
Depreciation RBER REH
allowances  EftW%¥  B&NZE  FEET
less than  Revaluation Future  Unrealised
related of benefits of  profits on Fak
depreciation  properties  tax losses inventories Total
i i i i T
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
EEMEHRRA : Deferred tax arising from:
RZEERFNA—H At 1 April 2006 (984) 2,498 (1,419) (2,181) (2,086)
GEA) /MBBEBER (Credited)/charged to
profit or loss (1,072) 308 83 422 (259)
ReEENR Charged to reserves - 6,200 - - 6,200
R-ZZEZFtF=A=1—H At 31 March 2007 (2,056) 9,006 (1,336) (1,759) 3,855
R=EEtEMA-A At 1 April 2007 (2,056) 9,006 (1,336) (1,759) 3,855
NBRBBER Charged to profit or loss 221 294 71 199 785
e AR Charged to reserves - 11,337 - - 11,337
RZEZN\F=A=1—H At 31 March 2008 (1,835) 20,637 (1,265) (1,560) 15,977

ANNUAL REPORT 2008 4Ff4E 105



MOISELLE

S 785 A

Notes to the Financial Statements

(LAE 51 7R ) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

24, BESBERFATRZAEH (E) 24.  INCOME TAX IN THE BALANCE SHEET (continued)
by ERIBTLHESHEEREE: (B) (b)  Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised:
(continued)
AEE
The group

—BEBN\F “ERLF

2008 2007

Fr T

$/000 $000

REESEBERERZ Net deferred tax asset recognised on the

EIEFTSHEE TR balance sheet (3,227) (4,112)
REESERERZ Net deferred tax liability recognised on the
EBIEFEHEEFEE balance sheet 19,204 7,967
15,977 3,855
(0 RERELEFREHEE: (c)  Deferred tax assets not recognised:
REBMRAD AL ER T 5 MR = The group and the company have not recognised
ERVBEHEEBDELEFEHEE deferred tax assets in respect of the following

temporary differences and tax losses:

rEE ARAF]
The group The company

ZEENE ZEZLHF ZEBENFE ZZTELHF

2008 2007 2008 2007

T T T T

$000 $000 $'000 $000

B EE Tax losses 64,884 43,443 8,564 7,187

MERBZED Depreciation allowances less

RIEEIE than related depreciation 1,238 = - _

66,122 43,443 8,564 7,187
RESBEEABRKEREG K& The group’s and company’s Hong Kong tax losses
REQABZ2EBBKEE D A of $55,459,000 (2007: $42,232,000) and
£55,459,000T (ZEZE L &F : $8,564,000 (2007: $7,187,000) respectively do
42,232,0007T) }8,564,0007T (=& not expire under the current tax legislation in

T F :7,187,0007T) I £ & i o
REBREBENZHREEBEEBR
TFEZER o
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25. Bg 2 25. SHARE CAPITAL
—EENE “EEtE
2008 2007
RAEE SH RPEE G|
No. of shares Amount  No. of shares Amount
T T
$'000 $000
ZE Authorised:
BREE0.017T Ordinary shares of $0.01
EER each 1,000,000,000 10,000 1,000,000,000 10,000
BETRHE - Issued and fully paid:
RmA-A At 1 April 282,030,000 2,821 281,950,000 2,820
BRESS 2 EBT Shares issued under share option
R (Hat23(a) scheme (note 23(a)) - - 80,000 1
R=A=+-H At 31 March 282,030,000 2,821 282,030,000 2,821

R-ZZELtFE EAEREETEUIBR
A ®80,000/% & B IR - 18 %92,0007T °
& /11,0007t T35 AR A - 82 T91,0007T
(P EE26) Bl BA B 17 )2 (B BR 51 BR o

EEREBARREERTHERZRKRE
BEAXARFAERLERITE-FREE-
FEEBREBFAAAZNBEEZRRS

In 2007, options were exercised to subscribe for 80,000
ordinary shares in the company at a consideration of
$92,000, of which $1,000 was credited to share capital
and the balance of $91,000 (note 26) was credited to the

share premium account.

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive
dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled

to one vote per share at meetings of the company. All

R o ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the
company'’s residual assets.
MOISELLE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED HFHEIREBEERA R ANNUAL REPORT 2008 4 4%t
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25.

R (&)

EXEE
AEEEREACEEERNRELAKH
RAHBERESECEREELE - #ME
BEERKERHEZREEERUSE
BAESRE  BESRRAZDHRE S
HttRERFE ABRAE -

FEEEBYEMERANERLERRE
LESHEE SOHREREEERES
MEARA 2BRETE  LEELER
BHNS{CHERRBELAE -

HRARERZEBNPESELEREE
REEBRAEAMBEIREERERE -
R-ZZZNFHE FAEEREA-FZ2L
FoRE BERHRARBUETZTER
EXFERNRBEESHT HEFIAER
BEKF AEETHABRSTTFRRZR
B2 BOHFRO ARRBREESH
HEEEUEMBRENKF -

RARREMBARBAZIINBER ZE
AIRERS

al

25.

MOISELLE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED H&FEBREESFRD =

SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Capital management

The group’s primary objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, by
pricing products and services commensurately with the
level of risk and by securing access to finance at a

reasonable cost.

The group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to maintain a balance between the
higher shareholder returns that might be possible with
higher levels of borrowings and the advantages and
security afforded by a sound capital position, and makes
adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes in

economic conditions.

Since the group is able to generate satisfactory returns
from internal capital, the group is not heavily financed by
external borrowings. During 2008, the group's strategy, in
monitoring its capital structure, which was unchanged
from 2007, was to maintain a sufficient cash level to
meet its liquidity requirements. In order to maintain or
adjust the cash level, the group may adjust the amount of
dividends paid to shareholders, issue new shares, return
capital to shareholders or sell assets to increase the cash

level.

Neither the company nor any of its subsidiaries are

subject to externally imposed capital requirements.
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26. fw#tE 26.  RESERVES
@ F&£H (@  Group
TR
BEN
AE BB
B#H2%  Land and
RGEE Hitfie EXFE  Statutory  buildings {REEF
Share ~ Other Exchange  reserve revaluation Retained ok
premium  reserve reserve funds  reserve profits Total
T Fr Fr i i i i
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
RZEE-ENA—H At 1 April 2006 58,510 121 323 4,024 32,312 202,596 297,886
BRETE2ERTRG Shares issued under
(Hiz225) share option scheme
(note 25) 91 - - - - - 91
EEEREZRE Dividend approved
(Hzt10) in respect of the
previous year
(note 10) - - - - - (33,834 (33,834
BEREMBARBERR .  Exchange differences
ERER on translation of
financial statements
of PRC subsidiaries - - 1,786 - = = 1,786
EffRE  BELMER Revaluation surplus,
(WF13(d)R240b) net of deferred tax
(notes 13(d) and
24(b)) - - - - 18,648 - 18,648
REERF Profit for the year - - - - - 78254 78,254
TEEEERZRE Dividend declared
(Hrz210) in respect of the
current year
(note 10) = = - - - (14,098)  (14,098)
RZBBLE=B=+-8  At31 March 2007 58,601 121 2109 4024 50960 232,918 348,733

MOISELLE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED H&FEBREESFRA =
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26. fRfE(E) 26.  RESERVES (continued)
(@) REHE (&) (a) Group (continued)
TR
BEY
EE  EfiRfE

BHA%E  Land and
BpaE EHftfgd ENGE  Statutory buildings REEF
Share Other Exchange  reserve revaluation Retained fg
premium  reserve reserve funds  reserve  profits Total
Tr Tr Tr Tr Tr Fr Tr
$000 $'000 $000 $'000 $000 $'000 $000

R-Z2LEMA-A At 1 April 2007 58,601 121 2,109 4,024 50,960 232918 348,733
EEEREZRE (f#70)  Dividend approved
in respect of the

previous year

(note 10) - - - - - (33,844) (33,844
BEPERBARMKRKZ  Exchange differences
EXESR on translation of
financial statements
of PRC subsidiaries - - 11,774 - - - 11,774
EftBE HELHEHR Revaluation surplus,
(B 13()R24(b) net of deferred tax
(notes 13(d) and
24(b)) = = - - 38,580 - 38,580
REEER Transfer between
reserves - - - 2,137 - (2,137) -
REE A Profit for the year = - = - - 52299 52,299
REEEERZRE Dividend declared
(#izt10) in respect of the
current year
(note 10) - - - - - (11,281)  (11,281)
RZEENFZA=1-H At 31 March 2008 58,601 121 13,883 6,161 89,540 237,955 406,261
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26. @ (&) 26.  RESERVES (continued)
by A2AF (b)  Company

R4 EE BARKR REET

Share  Contributed Retained BE
premium surplus profits Total
Fr T Fr T
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
RZZEZ-FENF—H At 1 April 2006 58,510 61,572 32,462 152,544
BRETE2ERITRG Shares issued under share
(Hrat25) option scheme (note 25) 91 = = 91
EFEREZRE Dividend approved in respect
(#rz£10) of the previous year
(note 10) - - (33,834) (33,834)
KEERA Profit for the year - - 59,749 59,749
FEEDERZKRE Dividend declared in respect
(#rz£10) of the current year
(note 10) - - (14,098) (14,098)
R-BEtE=B=1-§ At 31 March 2007 58,601 61,572 44,279 164,452
R-ZZEZtFMA—H At 1 April 2007 58,601 61,572 44,279 164,452
LEEREZRE Dividend approved in respect
(#z£10) of the previous year
(note 10) - - (33,844) (33,844)
KREERA Profit for the year - = 59,039 59,039
AFEECERZRE Dividend declared in respect
(#z£10) of the current year
(note 10) - - (11,281) (11,281)
RZZEE\E=A=1—H At 31 March 2008 58,601 601,572 58,193 178,366
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26.

(&)
REEERE B

(c)

(i)

(ir)

(iii)

R 17w 1E

RIEFMEFHEARZE B
BERUDIRTAATZR
R OHMEEREIRKEEA
HE XQTEADNEEIR
A EEREEKBARE
EEZE® ROEEST
BTHREANRD 2R
fEH 2K ©

EfE

Ht@EER =T _F—
BZ+HEB4&RZAEEE
AU 2 B A B Z R
AEEGREAREZARD
FAERITRACEHBEZZHE -

EL#E
Ei#EESmERBRES
BXBUBERRELEZER
EHE o 2 AHE R MR () AT
B BRER -

26.

RESERVES (continued)

(c)

MOISELLE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED H&FEBREESFRD =

Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

(if)

(iii)

Share premium

In accordance with the Companies Law of
the Cayman Islands, the share premium
account is distributable to the shareholders
of the company provided that immediately
following the date on which the dividend
is proposed to be distributed, the company
will be in a position to pay off its debts as
they fall due in the ordinary course of
business. The share premium may also be
distributed in the form of fully paid bonus

shares.

Other reserve

The other reserve represents the difference
between the nominal value of the share
capital of the subsidiaries acquired over
the nominal value of the shares of the
company issued in exchange therefor
pursuant to the group reorganisation which

became effective on 25 January 2002.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of
PRC operations. The reserve is dealt with
in accordance with the accounting policies

set out in note 1(r).
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26. f#fE(E)

(0 fREHERBH(E)

(iv)

(v)

EEBGAE
BENSEBEECEBERZH
Bl & AA 7 ZHE B
DNAARIMEZERSKD
B R ARERESRRBT
HEREANES - BHERL
ZHREESEZEVABEER
MEBEAF RPBEERTE)
Z1I0%ERIREESR
BEZEZES 2 H#EHBEERE
HEMEARZ50%5 1E o th1B
EenAFAGERERER
RBREARRE - PEKNE
ANAZESEARBERES
REANERTIBRIRER
BRNES - R-_TTRF+
B=+tBEBIEME &
—TTF-HA—HBHE F
BEBRTIBALIEEME -&
EEENER-ZBELF
=A=+—HBLEFEHH-
TEEOBIEBRENES
e R -

THREZYE G HFE

AEBESRILTHREEY
EffE UERBEMRE
15 B R & ith % 22 584 P R 4%
Z B BUR(HEE ()R -

S 785 A B

Notes to the Financial Statements

(A7 851 ’R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

26. RESERVES (continued)

(c) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(iv)

(v)

MOISELLE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED H&FEBREESFRA =

Statutory reserve funds

According to the PRC laws applicable to
wholly-owned foreign investment
enterprises, the PRC subsidiaries of the
company are required to set up two
statutory reserve funds, general reserve
fund and staff general fund. General
reserve fund was set up by appropriating at
least 10% of its annual profit after taxation,
as determined under PRC regulations, until
the balance of the fund equals to 50% of
its registered capital. This fund can be used
to make good losses and to convert into
paid-in capital. Transfer from retained
earnings to staff general fund was made at
the discretion of the board of directors of
the PRC subsidiaries. Starting from 1
January 2006, the transfer is no longer a
statutory obligation upon the revision of
the law on 27 October 2005 and no
transfer to staff general fund was made
during the year ended 31 March 2008 and
2007.

Land and building revaluation reserve

The land and buildings revaluation reserve
has been set up and will be dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policy
adopted for the revaluation of land and

buildings held for own use (note 1(f)).
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26. fiEifl (&) 26.  RESERVES (continued)
(0 REHEERBENE) (c)  Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

i) HHAZER (vi)  Contributed surplus
MABRERRBER=-ZZ The contributed surplus represents the
“E-AZ-+HEBENRZE difference between the then combined net
BEABBzHBELARE asset value of the subsidiaries acquired
KReeHEEREHEADH over the nominal value of the shares of the
BREERREZEHTRN company issued in exchange therefor
ZHEZEZH BABKBZ pursuant to the group reorganisation which
AEERMREER o became effective on 25 January 2002. The

application of contributed surplus is the

same as the share premium.

(d)  AHDIRREE (d)  Distributability of reserves
R-ZZBEENE=ZA=Z+—8 - At 31 March 2008, the aggregate amount of
AKFARBDER KRR Z B reserves available for distribution to equity
#EB178,366,000t (Z 2=+ shareholders of the company was $178,366,000
F :164,452,0007L) - A& EH (2007: $164,452,000). After the balance sheet
B EZEZORARARESR date the directors proposed a final dividend of
W(Z=ZLE:FRI12M) - & 7 cents per share (2007: 12 cents per share),
# 519,742,000 (Z BB+ F amounting to $19,742,000 (2007: $33,844,000).
33,844,0007t) ° LLIERE T ERA This dividend has not been recognised as a
RARHEHEHZEE - liability at the balance sheet date.
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27. &®mIE 27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
FE -RBEL MERIIMERBRIER Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and foreign
EEXBCERXBBREDELE - KAEH currency risks arises in the normal course of the group’s
TAREREMERBZRAREMEEZR business. The group is also exposed to equity price risk
RERKER arising from its equity investment in other entities.
ZERABITIAEB W BEERRR These risks are limited by the group’s financial
BB - management policies and practices described below.
@ FERR (@)  Credit risk

FEEZFERBEEHERERR
REMERREELE EEECHE
BR2EERRX THZEFER
B 4 EE P o

MEWERRREMMERRNS &
BEHEZRBHETEEZEERZE
FETEETG ZEEKZKBE R
HARE A #3080 REE - RA
BEREBREZERABE BN
EAEERBEEAAIBRTE-—SE
B - AEETEHEHNSEERERR
REMBHRRZATUE S LT
BRBRAAKRESEELEEHZRE
K518 o

TEIP R ERERRITER—
REFEFRREFNHFHET -
At EREELTRPRELEFH
THRETREZEE -

\+N

MOISELLE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED H&FEBREESFRA =

The group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to
trade and other receivables. Management has a
credit policy in place and the exposures to these

credit risks are monitored on an ongoing basis.

In respect of trade and other receivables, credit
evaluations are performed on all customers
requiring credit over a certain amount. These
receivables are due within 30 to 90 days from the
date of billing. Debtors with long overdue
balances are requested to settle all outstanding
balances before any further credit is granted. The
group reviews regularly the recoverable amount of
each individual trade and other receivable to
ensure that adequate impairment losses are made

for irrecoverable amounts.

Investments in held-to-maturity securities and
placement of bank deposits are normally with
counterparties that have sound credit ratings.
Therefore, management does not expect any
investment counterparty to fail to meet its

obligations.
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27. ©@MIA(E)
@ GERR#E)
REER AEBz2EREBEAR
ERBEADBMERERRHE
fE R R AR Z23% (BT L F ¢
10%) B13% (ZFZELF 1 28%) °

BRAFERBMECEBEEEERRA
ETRMEECKREESEK F5H
WERHEMAEAEEHAEAHEE
[ B B A AEHEAR o

by FRBEZEAMRE
FEECBRAENERBAIRAE
HeRhDESFR URREER
RAREHE UAENHREHRZ
RBEEHFE -

TRUEAEEREAQXBAREHEHFE
TEMBEE T2 R
e WU ARITRRE
w(ENEFEZRTNERFEZREX
B SRMBEEER REERE
AZBRFEZAEXH) RAEH
ERAQAAIRERZEFERAH
EDHr B2

MOISELLE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED H&FEBREESFRD =

27.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(@)

(b)

Credit risk (continued)

At the balance sheet date, 3% (2007: 10%) and
13% (2007: 28%) of the total trade and other
receivables was due from the group’s largest

debtor and the five largest debtors respectively.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is
represented by the carrying amount of each
financial asset in the balance sheet. The group has
not provided any financial guarantee which would

expose the group to credit risk.

Liquidity risk

The group’s policy is to regularly monitor current
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that
it maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its
liquidity requirements in the short and longer

term.

The following table details the remaining
contractual maturities at the balance sheet date of
the group’s and the company’s non-derivative
financial liabilities, which are based on
contractual undiscounted cash flow (including
interest payments computed using contractual
rates or, if floating, based on rates current at the
balance sheet date) and the earliest date the group

and the company can be required to pay:
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27. &WMIEA(#E) 27.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
by FRBELRAR(F) (b)  Liquidity risk (continued)
KEE
The group
“BENE “ERtE
2008 2007

HEERiig:) STARTR
RERAE -FRdRE ReRBE —Fhdie
Total  BAKIE Total  BAEEIE
BREE  contractual Within BREE  contractual Within
Carrying undiscounted 1 year or Carrying  undiscounted 1 year or
amount  cash flow  on demand amount  cash flow on demand
T T r r r T
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
EFRRR HE Trade and other payables 60,209 60,209 60,209 43,064 43,064 43,064
RTEL Bank overdrafts 1,499 1,499 1,499 = = =
61,708 61,708 61,708 43,004 43,004 43,004

ZANNE|
The company
It & Jie2 ZEERLE
2008 2007

HEER$:] R
ReRE -FREE ReTAE -FRgiE
Total  BHKIE Total  BAEEH
BRAE  contractual Within BEEE  contractual Within
Carrying undiscounted 1 year or Carrying  undiscounted 1 year or
amount  cash flow  on demand amount  cash flow  on demand
R i i T i T
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Ef SRR RAMENR Trade and other payables 1,850 1,850 1,850 1,618 1,618 1,618
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27. ©®WIHE) 27.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(o  F=mEk (c) Interest rate risk
REBCFEZRERBREIERBAEE The group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from
REERASG- its interest-bearing financial assets and liabilities.
(i) FZE =18 (i) Interest rate profile

TRAEXREBRAD ARG The following table details the interest rate
EHEEREERAEBRZ profile of the group’s and the company’s
RS interest-bearing financial assets and

liabilities at the balance sheet date:

—EENE i3 13
2008 2007
BERBiE BR#=E
Effective Effective
interest rate Fr interest rate Fr
$'000 $'000
BEEAZERERE Fixed rate financial assets:
- RITER — Deposits with banks 2.6% 33,111 3.18% 43,173
- BEIHZES ~ Held-to-maturity securities - - 4.45% 3,890
33,111 47,063
FELEEE Variable rate financial
liabilities:
—RITEX — Bank overdrafts 5.25% 1,499 = -
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ERMITE(E) 27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(c) Fl =@ R (48) (c) Interest rate risk (continued)
(i) FIZE7518 (#) (i) Interest rate profile (continued)
The company
—BRN\F =
2008 2007
ERHE BERHE
Effective Effective
interest rate S interest rate T
$'000 $/000
EENZERERE Fixed rate financial assets:
-BEABzES ~ Held-to-maturity securities - - 4.45% 3,890

(ir)

RZEENFE=ZBA=+—
B &Mz LEHA T B
— BT EHMUZBHHE
ERETEZERT A&
B 2 BR % 508 Al R AR B8 )% 7l
#EnRE2 #9264,0007T
—ZZ+F :356,0007T) °

ER SR 5 A7 T3 B R A =
BENEERRE LES
ZEDEARNZARE 2
ERFFESBIALFE
ErRAERRTEE . — B
BFABARREEEAESA
EEBET - BEEEER
HErARSE TSt
I DA — AR A7 o

(ii)

MOISELLE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED H&FEBREESFRA =

Sensitivity analysis

At 31 March 2008, it is estimated that a
general increase/decrease of 100 basis
points in interest rates, with all other
variables held constant, would increase/
decrease the group’s profit after tax and
retained profits by approximately $264,000
(2007: $356,000).

The sensitivity analysis above has been
determined assuming that the change in
interest rates had occurred at the balance
sheet date and had been applied to the
exposure to interest rate risk for both
derivative and non-derivative financial
instruments in existence at that date. The
100 basis point increase or decrease
represents management’s assessment of a
reasonably possible change in interest rates
over the period until the next annual
balance sheet date. The analysis is

performed on the same basis for 2007.
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27. SWIAE)
(d  IERBE
HAREEZABHIZHUB T
ExHE BLERE&EE XN
BREk BHRETHEHBTHN T
EEEMET BTEZFTEEE
REF - Fit EEERBINER
BB IK o

(e) RAEHRER
AEBESBEAHMEREE (RN
i16) ZRAREMAZRAER
ZEER FTAZSREINRBER
FrEm -HRZERAFAREZETH
TARER EEERBAEEEAE
ZBRAEREABRAE -

() DFE
FEEXEREEREBYRER
R-ZZZENER_ZZLE=A
ZST-HZAFEFERERER
ZHBHEIE-MBARAZEBRAE
EH REREBEEERY - ER
ZEGRR BEREZAFELE
&

MOISELLE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED H&FEBREESFRD =

27.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(d)

(e)

M

Foreign currency risk

The group is not exposed to significant foreign
currency risk because most of the transactions are
denominated in Hong Kong dollars (“HKD”) and
United States dollars (“USD”). As USD is pegged
to HKD, the management does not expect any
significant movements in the USD/HKD exchange
rate. Therefore, management considers the

exposure to foreign currency risk to be low.

Equity price risk

The group is exposed to equity price risk arising
from equity investments classified as other
financial assets (see note 16). All of these
investments are listed on the Stock Exchange.
Given that the amount of these equity investments
is not significant, management considers the

group’s exposure to equity price risk to be low.

Fair values

All significant financial assets and liabilities are
carried at amounts not materially different from
their fair values as at 31 March 2008 and 2007.
Balances with subsidiaries are unsecured, interest
free and have no fixed repayment terms. Given
these terms, it is not meaningful to disclose their

fair values.
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28. RE 28. COMMITMENTS
@ REZENF=ZA=Z+-—BHLER (@  Capital commitments outstanding at 31 March
B MR EE 2 REITER 2008 not provided for in the financial statements
AEWT were as follows:
rEE
The group

—EEBNE “EELHF

2008 2007

T T

$’000 $000

EHEY) Contracted for 492 438
(b) R=ZFNFZA=+—-0 RE (b) At 31 March 2008, the total future minimum lease

THBRREEHETRARENZR
EASENRELABNT -

payments under non-cancellable operating leases

are payable as follows:

rEE

The group
—BRENF il
2008 2007
Fr Fi
$000 $'000
—FR Within 1 year 103,547 64,866
—FERERFR After 1 year but within 5 years 104,937 55,406
208,484 120,272
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28. A& (AE)

(b) (#&)
AEERKEHERAETWE-
ZEHRN—RUVUSAB—ZHEF
WAIRKNREEHEENEIRRE
HN-HENREBERZERE
AURBR TS & o

BREXHEZHEHEHESRSD &
SEAREXERE THEWER
H-—EBDLESESAREZE
;%O

29, REEE
@ R-TENEF=Z=A=+-8:
AAFAMBETEZEREHBEA
AZBITRMEMBRTFELER:
& H4,763,000t (ZZ2EZE L & :
1,500,0007T) EEEHA ©

(b) BE_ZZENFE=A=1+—HILHF
EHE RXATTFH— EHER @
—RE2EMBARREER KRR
BeENEXSI RN EOZMEER
BREE-REF-R-_Z=ZENEFE=A
=+—H BEEEAH1,044,0007T
(CBTLF B o

ARNBUEEBRHZEER -ZF
REWHFEAFRBEBHEN
BAFRAEBER T AKARE
REBE(EBETER) B3R [ B
TH BIRGTE: UBERSH]
AEHEZERZZAFE Bt -
FHERYEIFEMEBERUR
FEFE -
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28.

29.

COMMITMENTS (continued)

(b)

(continued)

The group leases a number of properties under
operating leases. These leases typically run for an
initial period of one to five years, with an option
to renew the lease when all terms are
renegotiated. Lease payments are usually adjusted

annually to reflect market rentals.

In addition to the minimum lease payments
disclosed above, the group has commitments to
make rental payments at a percentage of turnover

for certain leased properties.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(@)

(b)

At 31 March 2008, guarantees were given to
banks by the company in respect of banking
facilities extended to certain wholly-owned
subsidiaries which were utilised to the extent of
$4,763,000 (2007: $1,500,000).

During the year ended 31 March 2008, the
company has also issued a single guarantee to a
supplier against obligations or sums payable for
goods and services supplied to a wholly owned
subsidiary. At 31 March 2008, such obligations
amounted to $1,044,000 (2007: $Nil).

These guarantees were issued by the company at
nil consideration. The transactions were not at
arm’s length, and it is not possible to measure
reliably the fair value of these transactions in
accordance with HKAS 39, Financial instruments:
Recognition and measurement: Financial
guarantee contracts, had they been at arm’s
length. Accordingly the guarantees have not been
accounted for as financial liabilities and measured

at fair value.

ANNUAL REPORT 2008 448k



MOISELLE

5 75 A

Notes to the Financial Statements

(A7 851 ’R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

30. EREBALIRS 30. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
MRZEMKERAEMTMEE2RE R In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed
RN REBITLTHERBEHALZ elsewhere in these financial statements, the group
RS : entered into the following material related party

transactions:

(a) HEBALTZRS (a) Transactions with related companies
—EENE —EELF
2008 2007
Fr T
$’000 $’000
2HEMEZHS WA Rental income from sub-lease 160 960
REYEZHERA Rental income from investment property 420 420
EEFEEzESAY Rental expense for director’s quarter 600 600
BFAEN s HEMX Rental expense for commercial unit 311 415

B A TR L 2SS A RBX
DBRINFHEERDZEZKRAERE -
R=-ZEZNF=A=+—-HE=Z
TLHFE=ZA=+—H NEEEFH

Rental fee income and expenses with related
companies were at terms mutually agreed by both
parties. There were no outstanding balances with

related companies as at 31 March 2008 and 31

REIBBEZAREEEER March 2007.

(b) TEEBAEMS (b)  Key management personnel remuneration
IREBAEME (BEME7AEK Remuneration for key management personnel,
BEXNTFARARTES 2HEH) including amounts paid to the company’s
mE executive directors as disclosed in note 7, is as

follows:
—EENE “EELHF
2008 2007
T T
$’000 $000
SHIEEEA Short-term employee benefits 12,958 12,074
BB ESER Post-employment benefits 60 57
13,018 12,131
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31, HhEEF
HREHEM(E BV BEREEANFLE €
MIE:FEIRCEESHEIE—H2
B EBRZE®R  EXAFEE] > oD
R FEABRUAFEAFEZREESE
WHEBAR-ZENEFREZEEBELE
BB T ZEBRZEBEFERHE?
= o

32. BARARRKRERLDF
RZZBEENEFE=ZA=Z+—H EERAE
AEB 2B RARKEEKERA L BSuper
Result Consultants Limited » — 3R A % & #

ST DB B 2 B RS IR AR o

33. EctfEstRAE
Wi HEEHERIA > BRRESA
REEZEH  AEWAETIEHRE
% 4R B0 85 3R T ER PR 2 0 2 4 M
it o

@ BEEEEZRE
FEESFHERBEARANS TR
RAGECTEERARETR - fid
HEAETSR EEZATWE S
“2ZERATEERFEEERFHE
B -EAEERARERMRZE
B ARARRERENRHEEE
KREFRNRBEREEGERRS
WA EEMNGSTHRESER
EARINREERTRDEHE Mk
NEBERNEZEENERREEM

E/
2
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31.

32.

33.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

As a result of adopting HKFRS 7, Financial instruments:
Disclosures and the amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation
of financial statements: Capital disclosures, certain
comparative figures have been adjusted to conform with
changes in disclosures in the current year and to show
separately comparative amounts in respect of items
disclosed for the first time in 2008. Further details of

these developments are disclosed in note 2.

PARENT AND ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY

At 31 March 2008, the directors consider the parent and
ultimate controlling party of the group to be Super Result
Consultants Limited, which is incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands. This entity does not produce financial

statements available for public use.

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

Note 27 contains information about the assumptions and
their risk factors relating to financial instruments. The
group believes the following accounting policies involve
critical judgements and estimates used in the preparation

of the financial statements.

@) Impairment of fixed assets
The group assesses annually whether fixed assets
have any indication of impairment in accordance
with the relevant accounting policies. If such
indication exists, the recoverable amounts of the
assets would be determined by reference to value
in use and net selling price. Value in use is
determined using the discounted cash flow
method. Due to inherent risk associated with
estimations in the timing and magnitude of the
future cash flows and net selling prices, the
estimated recoverable amount of the assets may
be different from its actual recoverable amount
and profit or loss could be affected by the

accuracy of the estimations.
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by EBEIZEWRRZREME

RE(EBEER) FE3 06K EE
HE] HEERBERERE S EY
R ZHEEAREEIRER  E&E
ARESEIERE]  MEEEETY
BERER BESRWERRZEES
EHER UFATRDESERES
EHRERAREE -EZBUERR
ZAWEEEDGTARESRE
RENEEZRTHHEEHRERFTR
AE-AEEAARAEREZESR
HAWCSHEESE2ME -

(0 WMEFE
REEEHSEREFESH B
FHEBZREEBAGEREFE
ZEREE RESEER &7
B 2 BRE B R Z R A h 5 7T 2 31F
B AEMHEFE -ARTHBE
THEZ BR2HEEA TN
T BERER  REMG 2 ERNY

WRER IR -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(A7 851 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

33.  ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

(continued)

(b)

()

Impairment of trade debtors

If circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
of trade debtors may not be recoverable, the assets
may be considered “impaired” and an impairment
loss may be recognised in accordance with HKAS
36, Impairment of assets. The carrying amounts of
trade debtors are reviewed periodically in order to
assess whether the recoverable amounts have
declined below the carrying amounts. The
recoverable amount of trade debtors is the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the
current market rate of return of similar assets. The
group uses all available information in
determining an amount that is a reasonable

approximation of recoverable amount.

Write down of inventories

The group performs regular review of the carrying
amounts of inventories with reference to aged
inventories analysis, historical consumption trends
and management judgement. Based on this
review, write down of inventories will be made
when the carrying amounts of inventories decline
below their estimated net realisable value. Due to
changes in market trends, actual consumption
may be different from estimation and profit or loss

could be affected by accuracy of this estimation.
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34.
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BE-_ZEENF=A=Z1+—HLEE
EEMEI RERZIEET ~ FILEH
KRBTGS

EEZSUMBRATIEAH FBEHM
AEEHEMZIRBE  MEEIREE
ZEEBA HBEARRBRBE-ZE
NE=ZR=+—HLEFEMARER BN
AREZSHBRERED -

AEBMREFGERPZSET - #IBER
RHRBERERAERYEZZE -2 EA
Bl - AEERD RKAZXSEET  HE
ZARFREBEANEE 2 EEXER YK
RRBREAL B ZAREETK -

BESh - T 5 5 B T B8 S B RS 3R AR 4F AR
RACHIES

(BRMBE®RE
HKFRS 8

ZERI) 585

34.

5 20

Operating segments

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT
NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH
2008

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
HKICPA has issued a number of amendments, new
standards and interpretations which are not yet effective
for the year ended 31 March 2008 and which have not

been adopted in these financial statements.

The group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments, new standards
and new interpretations is expected to be in the period of
initial application. So far it has concluded that the
adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact
on the group’s results of operations and financial

position.

In addition, the following development may result in new

or amended disclosures in the financial statements:

RT3 BHRz &R
B HEEX

Effective for

accounting periods

beginning on or after

—ZEZEAF—-A—H
1 January 2009
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Group Financial Summary

(A7 851 ’R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

The following is a summary of the published results and assets
and liabilities of the group for each of the five years ended 31

March 2008 prepared on the basis as set out in the notes below.

ES RESULTS
BE=A=+—-HLEE
Year ended 31 March
—EENE ZEZTtF ZEERF ZZTTIF ZTENF
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
Fr T T T T
$’000 $'000 $'000 $’000 $'000
EEE Turnover 415,464 352,217 311,617 292,124 227,186
REEF Profit from operations 57,959 85,459 75,714 80,599 47,620
BB R AN Finance costs (266) (365) (251) (505) (1,038)
TR EEY) Net valuation gains on
RiREMEZhE land and buildings and
W= FE investment properties 4,649 2,975 9,972 1,813 505
R %% Az Al Profit before taxation 62,342 88,069 85,435 81,907 47,087
REY Income tax (10,043) (9,815) (6,624) (6,150) 166
FREA Profit for the year 52,299 78,254 78,811 75,757 47,253
BREF Earnings per share
B=iN Basic $0.19 $0.28 $0.28 $0.27 $0.17
s Diluted $0.18 $0.27 $0.28 $0.27 i AN/A
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(LAE 51 7R ) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

EERBE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
=A=t-A
As at 31 March
—EENE ZET2tFE ZETRE ZETHE —TETNEF

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
(E5))" (E5)" (E5)"
(restated)”  (restated)”  (restated)"”
Fr T T T T
$/000 $'000 $’000 $’000 $'000
BEEEE Fixed assets 246,931 182,464 135,644 112,274 92,193
Hih&EE Other assets 20,519 13,558 12,118 7,026 8,167
FEIEFTBHRERE Deferred tax assets 3,227 4,112 4,617 4,276 3,756
REEERE Net current assets 157,609 159,387 154,273 141,116 122,744
EERMRE Total assets less
EEHE current liabilities 428,286 359,521 306,652 264,692 226,860
FREBERE Non-current liabilities (19,204) (7,967) (5,946) (4,257) (31,901)
409,082 351,554 300,706 260,435 194,959
B Share capital 2,821 2,821 2,820 2,818 2,805
#E Reserves 406,261 348,733 297,886 257,617 192,154
409,082 351,554 300,706 260,435 194,959
B ERSERBEEFEZ-"SERF=ZA Note(1): Deposits of $12,118,000 as at 31 March 2006 previously
=+—H:£12,118,000tEEF o EAH included in net current assets have been re-classified as other
HEE BEFE2HFRKEESN  LUFL assets. For comparison purpose, figures for the prior years
BRA® e have also been reclassified.
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